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A n n e x u r e  3

Report on Corporate Governance
1. 	 Company's philosophy on Code of Governance:

	 Corporate Governance sets forth guidelines for managing and sustaining a transparent, information-oriented culture wherein 
authority and responsibilities are co-existent and co-extensive. It also provides guidelines on accountability of various 
positions within the organization. These values govern not only the Board of Directors, but also the management and the 
employees of the Company. This Governance protects and balances the interests of all stakeholders thereby enhancing 
shareholder value.

2. 	 Board of Directors:

	 a)	 Composition of the Board

		  The strength of the Board was nine Directors as on 31st March, 2010, comprising of two Whole-time Directors, seven 
Non-Executive Directors. Five of the Non-Executive Directors are Independent Directors.

	 b) 	 Number of Board Meetings

		  Four Board Meetings were held during the year ended 31st March, 2010. The dates are – 21st April, 9th July,  
12th October, in the calendar year 2009 and 20th January, in the calendar year 2010.

	 c) 	 Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings, last Annual General Meeting (AGM) and number of other Directorships and 
Chairmanships/Memberships of Committees of each Director:

Name of Director Nature of 
Directorship

Board 
Meetings 
attended 

during the 
year

Whether 
attended 
last AGM

No. of other
Directorships

No. of Committee 
Memberships* 

Chairman Member
Mr. Pramod Chaudhari PD, ED 4 Yes 2 Nil 1
Mr. Shashank Inamdar PD, ED 4 Yes Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Anil Joshi ID, NED 4 Yes 5 3 8
Mr. Berjis Desai ID, NED 4 Yes 8 3 7
Mr. Kishor Chaukar ID, NED 4 Yes 14 1 4
Ms. Parimal Chaudhari PD, NED 3 Yes Nil Nil 1
Mr. Rajiv Maliwal $ ID, NED 2 N.A. 3 Nil 1
Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer ID, NED 4 Yes 5 4 1
Mr. Utpal Sheth NED 4 Yes 7 Nil Nil
Mr. Daljit Mirchandani # ID, NED 1 Yes – – –

		  Notes:

		  (1) 	 Ms. Parimal Chaudhari is wife of the Executive Chairman, Mr. Pramod Chaudhari. None of the other directors is 
related to any other director.

		  (2)	 PD – Promoter Director, ED – Executive Director, ID – Independent Director, NED – Non-Executive Director.

		  (3)	 *Committee Membership of only Audit Committee and Investors’ Grievance Committee is considered for this 
purpose.

		  (4) 	 Directorships in Foreign Companies and Private Limited Companies are excluded in the above table.

		  (5)	  $ Appointed as an Additional Director of the Company on 14th August, 2009.

		  (6) 	 # Retired on 9th July, 2009.

	 All relevant information suggested under the Clause 49 of the listing agreement is furnished to the Board from time to time.
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	 Code of conduct:

	 The Board has introduced a Code of Conduct for Directors and members of Senior Management. The Code is posted on 
Company’s website www.praj.net

	 The Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code. A declaration to that effect 
signed by Mr. Shashank Inamdar, CEO & MD forms part of this Report.

3. 	 Committees of the Directors:

	 a) 	 Audit Committee:

		  Terms of reference: The terms of reference of Audit Committee include overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process and disclosure of financial information; reviewing with the management, the quarterly and annual financial 
statements before submission to the Board for approval; reviewing with the management, the performance of Statutory 
and Internal Auditors and adequacy of internal control systems and all other matters specified under Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges.

		  Composition: As on 31st March, 2010, the Audit Committee of the Company comprises of three Independent 
Non-Executive Directors namely Mr. Berjis Desai (Chairman of the Committee w.e.f. 9th July, 2009), Mr. Sivaramakrishnan 
S. Iyer and Mr. Anil Joshi. The composition of the Audit Committee meets the requirements of Section 292A of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

		  Meetings: This Committee has met four times during the year i.e. on 21st April, 8th July, 12th October, in the calendar 
year 2009, 20th January, in the calendar year 2010.

		  Attendance of each Member at the Audit Committee meetings held during the year:

Name of Director No. of Meetings Meetings attended

Mr. Anil Joshi 4 4
Mr. Berjis Desai $ 4 2
Mr. Daljit Mirchandani # 4 2
Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer 4 4

			  $ Member w.e.f. 9th July, 2009.

			  # Member upto 9th July, 2009.

		  In addition to the members of Audit Committee, Executives of Accounts Department, Secretarial Department and 
Representatives of the Statutory and Internal Auditors attend the Audit Committee Meetings. Senior functional 
executives are also invited as and when required, to provide necessary inputs to the Committee. The Company 
Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

	 b) 	 Remuneration Committee:

		  Terms of Reference : The Remuneration Committee has been constituted to recommend/review the remuneration of 
Executive Directors of the Company.

		  Composition : As on 31st March, 2010, the Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises of three Independent 
Non-Executive Directors namely Mr. Berjis Desai (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer and  
Mr. Anil Joshi.

		  Meetings : This Committee has met twice during the year ended 31st March, 2010. The dates are – 21st April and 
9th July in the calendar year 2009.

		  Attendance of each Member at the Remuneration Committee meetings held during the year :

Name of Director No. of Meetings Meetings attended

Mr. Anil Joshi $ 2 Nil
Mr. Berjis Desai 2 2
Mr. Daljit Mirchandani # 2 2
Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer 2 2

		  $  	 Member w.e.f. 9th July, 2009.

		  # 	 Member upto 9th July, 2009.
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			  Remuneration Policy:

		  The Remuneration Policy of the Company takes into account the individual performance and contribution of the Director, 
the profitability of the Company, prevalent industry standards and government policy in this regard.

		  i) 	 Remuneration of Executive Directors:

			   The aggregate value of Salary and Perquisites including commission for the year ended 31st March, 2010 to the 
Executive Directors is as follows:

			   Mr. Pramod Chaudhari, Executive Chairman Rs. 58.13 Mn. (Salary Rs. 13.14 Mn., Perquisites Rs. 17.09 Mn. and 
Commission Rs. 27.90 Mn.), Mr. Shashank Inamdar, CEO & MD Rs. 21.45 Mn. (Salary Rs. 4.64 Mn., Perquisites 
Rs. 5.11 Mn. and Commission Rs. 11.70 Mn.). Besides this the Executive Directors are also entitled to provident 
fund, superannuation, gratuity and encashment of leave, as per the rules of the Company.

			   The tenure of office of the Executive Chairman is for a period of 5 years from the date of appointment. As per 
agreement Severance Fees is restricted to 36 months salary.

			   The tenure of office of the CEO & MD is for a period of 3 years from the date of appointment. As per agreement 
Severance Fees is restricted to 6 months salary.

		  ii) 	 Compensation to Non-Executive Directors:

				   As a policy the Company does not pay any sitting fees to Directors for attendance of the Meetings.

				   The Commission to Non-Executive Directors for 2009-10 is Rs. 5.40 Mn. The details are as follows:

				   Mr. Anil Joshi Rs. 0.360 Mn., Mr. Berjis Desai Rs. 0.945 Mn., Mr. Kishor Chaukar Rs. 0.720 Mn., Ms. Parimal 
Chaudhari Rs. 0.945 Mn., Mr. Rajiv Maliwal Rs. 0.270 Mn., Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer Rs. 1.800 Mn. and  
Mr. Utpal Sheth Rs. 0.360 Mn.

			   Shares held and Options granted to Non-Executive Directors as on 31/03/2010 :

Name of Director Number of 
Equity Shares

held

Stock Options

outstanding 

Grant Price per 
option

(Rs.)

Last date for 
conversion of 

options 

Mr. Anil Joshi Nil Nil N. A. N. A.

Mr. Berjis Desai 1,481,450 Nil N. A. N. A.

Mr. Kishor Chaukar Nil Nil N. A. N. A.

Ms. Parimal Chaudhari 6,673,077 Nil N. A. N. A.

Mr. Rajiv Maliwal  20,000 Nil N. A. N. A.

Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer  180,000 Nil N. A. N. A.

Mr. Utpal Sheth Nil Nil N. A. N. A.

	 c) 	 Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee:

		  Composition : As on 31st March, 2010, the Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee of the Board comprises of 
three Directors namely Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Anil Joshi and Ms. Parimal 
Chaudhari.

		  Meetings : This Committee has met four times during the year ended 31st March, 2010. The dates are – 21st April,  
9th July, 12th October, in the calendar year 2009 and 20th January, in the calendar year 2010.

	 	 Attendance of each Member at the Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee meetings held during the 
year:

Name of Director No. of Meetings Meetings attended
Mr. Anil Joshi 4 4
Ms. Parimal Chaudhari 4 3
Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer 4 4

		  During the year the Company has received 27 complaints which were attended to. No investors’ complaint is pending 
as on 31st March, 2010.
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		  Mr. Deepak Mogal, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for complying with the requirements of SEBI 
Regulations and the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges.

	 d) 	 Compensation & Share Allotment Committee:

		  Composition: As on 31st March, 2010, the Compensation & Share Allotment Committee of the Board comprises of 
three Directors namely Mr. Berjis Desai (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer and Mr. Shashank 
Inamdar.

		  Meetings: This Committee has met four times during the year ended 31st March, 2010. The dates are – 21st April,  
9th July, 12th October, in the calendar year 2009 and 20th January, in the calendar year 2010.

	 	 Attendance of each Member at the Compensation and Share Allotment Committee meetings held during the 
year:

Name of Director No. of Meetings Meetings attended

Mr. Berjis Desai 4 4
Mr. Daljit Mirchandani # 4 1
Mr. Pramod Chaudhari # 4 2
Mr. Shashank Inamdar 4 4
Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer 4 4

			  # Members upto 9th July, 2009

4.	 General Body Meetings:

			  Details of last Three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) are given in table below:

Year Venue Date & Time Special Resolutions passed 

2006-07 ‘PRAJ HOUSE’, Bavdhan, 
Pune 411 021

 5th June, 2007
10.30 a.m.

a) 	 Issue of Bonus Shares
b) 	 Re-appointment of CEO & MD
c) 	 Re-appointment of Executive 

Chairman
d) 	 Payment of commission to 
	 Non-	Executive Directors

2007-08 ‘PRAJ HOUSE’, Bavdhan, 
Pune 411 021

27th June, 2008
10.30 a.m.

a)	 Alteration of Articles of Association

2008-09 ‘PRAJ HOUSE’, Bavdhan, 
Pune 411 021

9th July, 2009 
10.30 a.m.

a)	 Alteration of Articles of Association
b)	 Payment of commission to  

Non-Executive Directors of the 
Company at enhanced rate.

5. 	 Disclosures:

	 a) 	 Related Party Transactions:

		  Please refer to Schedule No. 18.4 of Notes to Accounts for materially significant related party transactions.
	 b) 	 Statutory compliance, Penalties and Strictures:

		  There has not been any non-compliance, penalties or strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges, or 
any other statutory authority on any matter relating to the Capital Market during the last three years.

	 c)	 Listing Agreement Compliance:

		  The Company complies with all the requirements of the Listing Agreement including the mandatory requirements of 
Clause 49 of the Agreement.

	 d) 	 Whistle Blower Policy:

		  The Company has a mechanism for employees to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, financial impropriety 
etc. There is inherent assurance about non victimisation of employees using this mechanism.
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6. 	 Disclosure regarding appointment/re-appointment of Directors:

	 Mr. Berjis Desai

	 Date of birth 		  : 	 02/08/1956

	 Date of Appointment 		  : 	 27/08/1993

	 Qualification 		  : 	 LLB. Masters degree in law from Cambridge University

	 Expertise in specific functional area :

	 His expertise lies in laws relating to mergers and acquisitions, securities, international commercial arbitration and in financial 
and international business law.

	 Directorships held in other public companies (excluding foreign companies and Section 25 companies):

	 Currently, Mr. Berjis Desai acts as a Director on the Board of various Companies viz.  Sterlite Industries (India) Ltd., The 
Great Eastern Shipping Company Ltd., National Organic Chemical Industries Ltd., Edelweiss Capital Ltd., Deepak Nitrite Ltd., 
Centrum Capital Ltd., Greatship (India) Ltd., Emcure Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

	 Memberships/Chairmanships of committees of public companies (includes only Audit Committee and Shareholders’/
Investors’ Grievance Committee):

Sterlite Industries (India) Ltd. Member 	 – 	Shareholders’ Grievance Committee

Member 	 – 	Audit Committee
NOCIL Chairman 	 – 	Investors’ Grievance Committee
Praj Industries Ltd. Chairman 	 –	 Audit Committee
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Member 	 – 	Audit Committee
The Great Eastern Shipping Co. Ltd. Member	  – 	Audit Committee

Member 	 – 	Shareholders’ Grievance Committee
Centrum Capital Ltd. Chairman 	 – 	Investors’ Grievance Committee
Greatship (India) Ltd. Member 	 – 	Audit Committee
Edelweiss Capital Ltd. Member 	 – 	Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee

	 Shareholding in the Company :

	 He holds 1,481,450 (0.80%) shares of the Company in his name as on 31st March, 2010.

	 Mr. Kishor Chaukar

	 Date of birth 	 : 	 01/08/1947

	 Date of Appointment 	 : 	 19/06/2007

	 Qualification 	 : 	 Post graduate in Management from IIM Ahmedabad.

	 Expertise in specific functional area :

	 Mr. Kishor Chaukar is a member of Group Corporate Centre which is engaged in strategy formulation at the house of TATA. 
He is also actively involved in CSR activities of Tata Group.

	 Directorships held in other public companies (excluding foreign companies and section 25 companies ) :

	 Currently, Mr. Kishor Chaukar acts as a Director on the Board of various Companies viz. Tata Industries Ltd., Tata Advanced 
Materials Ltd., Tata Teleservices Ltd., Tata Autocomp Systems Ltd., Tata Communications Ltd., IDFC Private Equity Company 
Ltd., Tata Investment Corporation Ltd., Tata Business Support Services Ltd., Tata Petrodyne Ltd., TSR Darashaw Ltd., Tata 
Industrial Services Ltd., Tata Yazaki Autocomp Ltd., Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Ltd., Tata AIG Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

	 Memberships/Chairmanships of committees of public companies (includes only Audit Committee and Shareholders’/ 
Investors’ Grievance Committee) :

Tata Autocomp Systems Ltd. Member 	 – 	 Audit Committee
Tata Teleservices Ltd. Member 	 – 	 Audit Committee
Tata Communications Ltd. Chairman 	 –	 Investors’ Grievance Committee
Tata Business Support Services Ltd. Member 	 –	 Audit Committee
Tata Industrial Services Ltd. Member 	 –	 Audit Committee

	 Shareholding in the Company : Nil



Annual Report 2009-10

19

	 Mr. Rajiv Maliwal

	 Date of birth 	 : 	 26/11/1960

	 Date of Appointment 	 : 	 14/08/2009

	 Qualification 	 : 	 Mechanical Engineer from BITS and post graduate in Business Administration from IIM 
Bangalore.

	 Expertise in specific functional area :

	 Mr. Maliwal has vast experience in investing and managing large businesses in financial service industry.

	 Directorships held in other public companies (excluding foreign companies and section 25 companies ):

	 Currently, Mr. Rajiv Maliwal acts as a Director on the Board of various Companies viz. ECI Engineering & Construction 
Company Ltd., Ramky Infrastructure Ltd., Man Infraconstruction Ltd.

	 Memberships/Chairmanships of committees of public companies (includes only Audit Committee and Shareholders’/
Investors’ Grievance Committee):

	 Mr. Rajiv Maliwal is a member of Audit Committee of Man Infraconstruction Ltd.

	 Shareholding in the Company:

	 He holds 20,000 (0.01%) shares of the Company in his name as on 31st March, 2010.

	 Mr. Shashank Inamdar, CEO & MD:

	 Date of birth 	 : 	 20/07/1955

	 Date of Appointment 	 : 	 13/12/1985

	 Qualification 	 : 	 Chemical Engineer from IIT Bombay.

	 Expertise in specific functional area :

	 Mr. Inamdar has extensive experience in general management including marketing, design, engineering, project execution, 
manufacturing and development. Trained in plant engineering, design and bio-tech processes, he has in-depth experience in 
chemical engineering, process technology and bio-technology.

	 Directorships held in other public companies (excluding foreign companies and section 25 companies) : Nil

	 Memberships/Chairmanships of committees of public companies (includes only Audit Committee and Shareholders’/
Investors’ Grievance Committee) : Nil

	 Shareholding in the Company :

	 Mr. Shashank Inamdar is the Promoter of the Company and holds 1,522,828 (0.82%) shares of the Company in his name as 
on 31st March, 2010.

7. 	 Investor Services:

	 a)  	 Share Transfer Process

		  The Company’s shares, which are in compulsory dematerialized (demat) list, are transferable through the depository 
system. Shares in physical form are processed by Registrar and Transfer Agent, Link Intime India Private Limited 
(Formerly known as Intime Spectrum Registry Limited). The share transfers are processed within a period of 15 days 
from the date of receipt of the transfer documents by Link Intime India Private Limited.

	 b) 	 Investor Help – desk

		  Share transfers and all other investors related activities are attended to and processed at the office of our Registrar 
and Transfer Agents viz. Link Intime India Private Limited. Their address is given in the section on Shareholders 
Information.

	 c) 	 Dividends

		  Dividends and other related activities are handled jointly by in-house Secretarial Department and R & T Agent. During 
the year, investor services like electronic information system for payment of dividend has been introduced for those 
investors whose e-mail ids are available with the Company.
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8. 	 Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Certification:

	 As per the requirement of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, a Certificate duly signed by CEO and CFO of the Company was 
placed at the Board Meeting of the Company held on 29th May, 2010.

	 All mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement have been complied with by the Company and the extent 
of adoption of non-mandatory requirements are as follows –

	 Non-Mandatory requirements:

	 Chairman’s Office:

	 The Company has an Executive Chairman and the office with required facilities is provided and maintained at the Company’s 
expenses for use by the Chairman.

	 Retirement Guidelines:

	 Executive Directors will retire at the age of 60 years and Non-Executive Directors will retire at the age of 65 years. However, 
the Board is at liberty to grant extensions.

	 Shareholders Rights:

	 The financial results are published in the Indian Express, Loksatta, Economic Times, Pune and Mumbai & Business Standard 
all editions and are also displayed on the Company’s website and therefore, have not been separately circulated to the 
shareholders.

	 Training of Board Members:

	 The present Board of Directors is comprised of well experienced and professionals and entrepreneurs.

	 Mechanism for evaluating Non-Executive Board Members:

	 Presently the evaluation of Non-Executive Directors is being done by Executive Directors and Lead Non-Executive Director.

	 Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy:

	 The Company has a policy and mechanism for preventing sexual harassment of employees.

9. 	 Certificate on Corporate Governance:

	 The Company has obtained a Certificate from Dr. K. R. Chandratre, Practising Company Secretary regarding Compliance of 
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and the same is annexed.

10. 	 Additional Information for Shareholders:

	 Annual General Meeting:

	 Date & Time 	 : 	 23rd July, 2010 at 10.00 a.m.

	 Venue 	 : 	 "PRAJ HOUSE", Bavdhan, Pune 411 021

	 Financial Year 	 : 	 1st April to 31st March

	 Financial Calendar:

	 For the year ended 31st March, 2010 quarterly results were announced on :

Results for the quarter ended June 2009 9th July, 2009
Results for the quarter ended September 2009 12th October, 2009
Results for the quarter ended December 2009 20th January, 2010
Results for financial year ended March 2010 29th May, 2010

	 For the year ended 31st March, 2011, the tentative announcement dates are :

Results for the quarter ending June 2010 Third week of July 2010
Results for the quarter ending September 2010 Third week of October 2010
Results for the quarter ending December 2010 Third week of January 2011
Results for last quarter ending March 2011 Third week of April 2011
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	 Date of Book Closure 	 : 	 19th July, 2010 to 23rd July, 2010 (both days inclusive)

		 Listing on Stock Exchange
		 (Stock Code) 	 :	 The Company's shares are listed on: 

					    Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., Mumbai (522205) 

					    National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (PRAJIND)

					    The Annual Listing Fees for 2010-2011 have been paid to both the Stock Exchanges.

					    The ISIN Number allotted to Company’s Equity Shares is INE074A01025.

	 Stock Market Data
	 Monthly high/low during the year 2009-2010 on BSE & NSE:

Month BSE NSE
High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) High (Rs.) Low (Rs.)

April 2009 86.70 57.80 88.55 57.10
May 2009 118.00 65.90 114.70 66.25
June 2009 122.55 88.10 122.70 88.20
July 2009 97.85 70.00 97.90 70.00
August 2009 107.75 81.90 105.40 82.00
September 2009 109.65 95.10 109.65 90.00
October 2009 105.00 83.10 105.00 83.05
November 2009 96.80 77.90 96.40 77.80
December 2009 106.40 88.55 106.25 88.55
January 2010 112.90 81.65 113.00 81.50
February 2010 89.75 78.60 90.00 78.70
March 2010 88.85 81.50 90.00 82.00
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	 Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2010:

Category No. of shares of Rs. 2/- each % of holding Shares pledged 

No. of
shares %

Promoters Holding 42124432 22.80 0 0
Total (A) 42124432 22.80 0 0
Non-Promoter Holding
Mutual Funds/Banks 16674862 9.03
Financial Institutions/Banks 7386162 4.00
Foreign Institutional Investors 16494663 8.93
Bodies Corporate 26997986 14.61
Indian Public 61898952 33.50
Clearing Members 1839145 1.00
Non-Resident Indians 9581840 5.19
Overseas Corporate Bodies 1622250 0.88
Trusts 118200 0.06
Total (B) 142614060 77.20

Total (A) + (B) 184738492 100.00 0 0

Bodies Corporate 
14.61%

Indian Public  
33.50%

Mutual Funds/ 
Banks/ Financial 

Institutions  
13.03%

FIIs/OCB 
9.81%NRIs 

5.19%

Promoters Holding
22.80%

Others
1.06%

	 Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2010:

Holdings              Shareholders            Shares
Number % to total Number % to total

Upto 500 139088 98.21 28321473 15.33
501   to 1000 1351 0.95 4963256 2.69
1001 to 2000 605 0.43 4450154 2.41
2001 to 3000 155 0.11 1947490 1.05
3001 to 4000 95 0.07 1693029 0.92
4001 to 5000 61 0.04 1387898 0.75
5001 to 10000 94 0.07 3410436 1.85
10001 and above 173 0.12 138564756 75.00
Total 141622 100.00 184738492 100.00
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	 Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity:

	 As on 31st March, 2010, 99.72% of shareholding was held in dematerialized form with National Securities Depository Ltd. 
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL). In terms of the notification issued by SEBI, trading in the equity 
shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialized form w.e.f. 15th March, 2000.

	 Physical and Demat Shares:

As on 31/03/2010 %
No. of Shares held by NSDL 122752929 66.45
No. of Shares held by CDSL 61470141 33.27
Physical Shares 515422 0.28
Total 184738492 100.00

	 Investor Services:

	 The share transfer for electronic shares and physical shares is handled by Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., Pune.

	 The Company has constituted Investors’ Grievance Committee for redressing shareholders and investors complaints.  
Mr. Deepak Mogal, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer.

	 In order to facilitate investor servicing, the Company has designated an e-mail id investorsfeedback@praj.net mainly for 
registering complaints by investors. Shareholders are requested to address their complaints, if any, only on this designated 
e-mail id for quick redressal thereof.

	 Address for correspondence:

	 As stated earlier investors are requested to contact Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., Block No. 202, 2nd floor, Akshay Complex, 
Near Ganesh Temple, Off Dhole Patil Road, Pune 411 001 for queries and share related matters.

	 Shares held in Electronic Form:

	 The members holding shares in electronic mode should address their correspondence to their respective Depository 
Participant regarding change of address, change of bank account mandate and nomination.

	 INVESTOR SAFEGUARDS

	 In order to serve you better and enable you to avoid risks while dealing in securities you are requested to follow general 
safeguards as below :

	 Demat Your Shares

	 Members are requested to convert their physical holding to demat form through any of the nearest depository participant 
(DPs) to avoid hassles involved with physical shares such as possibility of loss, mutilation, and to ensure safe and speedy 
transaction in securities.

	 Register Your National Electronic Clearing Services (NECS) Mandate

	 RBI has initiated NECS for credit of Dividend directly to the Bank Account of shareholders. Members holding shares in 
electronic mode are requested to register their latest Bank Account details (Core Banking Solutions enabled account number, 
9 digit MICR and 11 digit IFS Code details) with their Depository Participant. Members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to intimate their latest Bank Account details (Core Banking Solutions enabled account number, 9 digit MICR and 11 
digit IFS Code details) to the Company’s R & T Agent.

	 Do not Forget to Encash Your Dividend

	 Please encash your dividend promptly to avoid hassles of revalidation/losing your rights of claim owing to transfer of 
unclaimed dividend beyond seven years to Investor Education and Protection Fund Account.

	 Update Your Address

	 To receive all communications promptly please update your address registered with the Company or DPs, as may be 
applicable.

	 Consolidate Your Multiple Folios

	 Members are requested to consolidate their holding held under multiple folios to save them from burden of receiving multiple 
communication and corporate benefits.
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	 Register Nominations

	 To help your successors get the shares transmitted in their favour please register your Nomination. Members desirous of 
availing this facility may submit nomination in Form 2B prescribed under the Companies (Central Government’s) General 
Rules & Forms, 1956. Members holding their shares in dematerialized form are requested to register their nomination directly 
with their respective DPs.

	 Prevention of Fraud

	 There are certain instances of fraudulent transactions observed relating to dormant folios where the share holder has either 
expired or has gone abroad. Hence we urge to exercise due diligence and notify us of any change in address/stay in abroad 
or demise of any shareholder as soon as possible. Do not leave your Demat account dormant for long. Periodic statement of 
holding should be obtained from concerned DP and holding should be verified.

	 Confidentiality of Security Details

	 Do not disclose your Folio no./DP ID/ Client Id to an unknown person. Do not hand over signed blank transfer deeds/delivery 
instructions slips to any unknown person.

	 Means of Communication

	 l	 The quarterly/half  yearly financial results : Quarterly/half yearly financial results are published in widely circulating 
dailies such as Indian Express, Loksatta, Economic Times, Pune and Mumbai, and Business Standard all editions.

	 l	 News Release, Presentations etc. : Official news release, detailed presentations made to media, analysts etc. are 
displayed on the Company’s website www.praj.net. Official Media Releases are sent to the Stock Exchanges.

	 l	 Website : The Company’s website www.praj.net contains a separate dedicated section ‘Investor Lounge’ where 
information for shareholders is available. The Annual Report of the Company is also available on the website in a 
downloadable form.

	 l	 Annual Report : Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Annual Accounts, Consolidated Financial Statements, 
Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and other important information is circulated to members and others entitled 
thereto. The Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) Report forms part of the Annual Report. The quarterly/half - 
yearly un-audited financial results and official news releases were displayed on the Company's website.
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Declaration for Compliance with Code of Conduct

To the Members of PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Pursuant to Clause 49 I (D) (ii) of the Listing Agreement, I hereby declare that all Board members and senior management personnel 
are aware of the provisions of the Code of Conduct laid down by the Board and made effective from 28 January 2006. All Board 
members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct.

For PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SHASHANK INAMDAR
CEO & MD

PLACE 	 : 	PUNE

DATE 		 :	 29 MAY 2010

Certificate on Compliance with Clause 49 of The Listing 
Agreement by Praj Industries Limited

To the Members of PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED

I have examined the compliance by PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED (‘the Company’) of the requirements under Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement, entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges, for the year ended 31 March 2010.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, I certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My examination 
was limited to procedures adopted, and implementation thereof, by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions 
of Corporate Governance under Clause 49. The examination is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company.

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

DR. K. R. CHANDRATRE
PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY
FCS NO. 1370
CERTIFICATE OF PRACTICE NO. 5144

PLACE 	 : 	PUNE

DATE 		 :	 29 MAY 2010
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A n n e x u r e  4

Disclosures pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (ESOS and ESPS) Guidelines, 1999 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars ESOP 2005 Grant I 
12th October, 2005 

ESOP 2005 Grant II 
28th December, 2006 

ESOP 2005 Grant III 
9th July, 2009 

1. Details of meeting Annual General Meeting held on 23rd July, 2005. 

2. Options Granted (including impact of bonus) 2,759,139 2,311,500 3,029,626

3. Pricing Formula At fair market value At fair market value At fair market value 

4. Options vested 2,759,139 1,655,812 Nil

5. Options exercised 2,440,486 79,107 Nil

6. The total number of shares arising as a 
result of exercise of options. 

2,440,486 79,107 Nil

7. Options lapsed/cancelled 264,751 372,034 180,750

8. Variation of terms of options Nil Nil Nil 

9. Money realised by exercise of options Rs. 609.58 lacs Rs. 0.65 lacs Nil

10. Total number of options in force 53,902 1,860,359 2,848,876

11. Details of options granted to Senior 
Managerial Personnel: 

V. A. Datar

Berjis Desai 

S. S. Iyer 

Ajit Lele

R. V. Chaudhari

Arun Tengshe 

Anil Deshpande 

Balu Sarma

60,000

90,000

120,000

25,000

30,000

18,000

18,000

Nil 

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

8,100

8,100

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

15,000

12. Any other employee/Non-Executive Director 
who receives a grant in any one year of 
option amounting to 5% or more of option 
granted during that year :

Berjis Desai 

S. S. Iyer 

90,000 

120,000 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

13. Identified employee who were granted 
option, during any one year, equal to or 
exceeding 1% of the issued capital (excluding 
outstanding warrants and conversions) of 
the Company at the time of grant. 

N.A. N.A. N.A. 
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14. 	 Proforma adjusted net income and earning per share: 

Particulars Rs.

Net income as reported (in millions) 1138.847

Add: Intrinsic Value Compensation Cost Nil

Less: Fair Value Compensation Cost (in millions) 54.502

Adjusted Proforma Net Income (in millions) 1084.345

Basic Earning Per Share – 
	 As Reported 6.18
	 Adjusted Proforma 5.89
Diluted Earning Per Share – 
	 As Reported 6.16
	 Adjusted Proforma 5.87

15. 	 Assumptions used to estimate the Fair Value of Options using Black-Scholes option pricing model: 

Particulars Date of Grants 

12th October, 2005 28th  December, 2006 9th July, 2009 

1.	 Risk-free interest rate 6.23%- 6.54% 7.53% - 7.68% 4.09% - 5.40%

2.	 Expected Life 2–3 years 2–3 years 2–3 years

3.	 Expected Volatility 60.31% 61.47% 83.45%

4.	 Expected Dividend Yield 5.56% 4.07% 0.93%

5.	 Price of the underlying share 
in market at the time of 
Options grants 

Rs. 93.30 Rs. 185.86 Rs. 81.75

16. 	 (i) 	 Weighted-average exercise price of options granted: 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Rs.

1. Exercise price equals market price 85.72

2. Exercise price is greater than market price NA

3. Exercise price is less than market price NA

	 (ii) 	 Weighted-average fair value of options granted during the year: 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars Rs.

1. Exercise price equals market price 39.77

2. Exercise price is greater than market price NA

3. Exercise price is less than market price NA
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Praj At a Glance

SALES Rs. Min 6022.84 7718.81 7016.27 6074.74 2674.98 2352.57 1065.19 881.56

OTHER INCOME Rs. Min 424.52 241.80 386.83 89.33 25.33 30.66 21.39 12.91

TOTAL INCOME Rs. Min 6447.36 7960.61 7403.10 6164.07 2700.31 2383.23 1086.58 894.47

TOTAL EXPENDITURE Rs. Min 5111.59 6270.88 5603.96 5028.82 2349.94 2084.56 963.28 831.06

NET OF DEPRECIATION

DEPRECIATION Rs. Min 105.11 81.71 55.35 31.61 26.50 19.55 15.74 15.99

EBIDTA (Excl. Other Income) Rs. Min 914.55 1451.81 1412.60 1048.45 330.36 269.81 109.58 66.00

PBT Rs. Min 1230.65 1608.02 1743.79 1103.65 323.87 279.12 107.55 47.43

PAT Rs. Min 1138.85 1297.48 1535.44 865.29 244.13 217.58 81.38 24.26

NET BLOCK OF FIXED ASSETS Rs. Min 1441.25 1471.60 1059.68 454.53 279.02 210.78 178.14 175.94

+ CWIP

SHARE CAPITAL Rs. Min 369.48 366.86 366.32 167.80 162.23 81.11 81.11 81.11

RESERVES AND SURPLUS Rs. Min 4953.86 4067.74 3142.08 1405.06 387.29 340.81 222.85 182.64

NET WORTH Rs. Min 5323.33 4434.60 3508.40 1572.86 549.52 421.93 303.96 263.75

EPS (Basic) Rs. 6.18 7.08 8.55 5.19 3.01 2.68 1.00 0.30

EBIDTA TO SALES 15 19 20 17 12 11 10 7

(Excl. Other Income)

PBT TO SALES 20 21 25 18 12 12 10 5

PAT TO SALES 19 17 22 14 9 9 8 3

RONW 23 33 60 82 50 60 29 11

ROCE 25 40 69 104 68 73 33 20

NO. OF SHARES Nos. 184,136,528 183,350,588 179,536,155 166,717,368 81,112,520 81,112,520 81,112,520 81,112,520

DIVIDEND 72 90 99 135 63 108 45 NIL

BOOK VALUE PER SHARE Rs. 28.82 24.19 19.54 9.43 6.77 5.20 3.75 3.25

CASH EPS Rs. 6.73 7.52 8.86 5.38 3.34 2.92 1.20 0.50

UOM 09-10 08-09 07-08 06-07 05-06 04-05 03-04 02-03

RATIOS

%

%

%

%

%

%

Notes :

1.  Face Value of share @ Rs. 2/- per share.

2.  RONW in FY 2006-07, 2007-08 reflects increase in capital due to preferential allotment.

3.  Book Value per share reflects increase in number of shares consequent to issue of bonus shares.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

To The Members, Praj Industries Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Praj Industries Limited, as at 31st March, 2010 and also the Profit and Loss 
Account for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) 
of Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, as amended from time to time, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, we report that :

(i)	 We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit;

(ii)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our 
examination of those books;

(iii)	 The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

(iv)	 In our opinion, the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this report comply with the accounting standards 
referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

(v)	 On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on 31st March, 2010, and taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2010 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of Section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956;

(vi)	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India :

	 (a)	 in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2010; 

	 (b)	 in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

	 (c)	 in the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended as on that date.

For and on behalf of  

B. K. KHARE & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

U. B. JOSHI
PARTNER

PLACE 	 : 	PUNE 	 MEMBERSHIP NO. 044097
DATED 	 : 	29 MAY 2010 	 FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105102W
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 1 of our Report of even date:

i.	 (a) 	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of 
fixed assets.

	 (b) 	 The Company has a programme of physical verification of fixed assets by which all fixed assets are verified in a phased 
manner over a period of two years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regards 
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

	 (c) 	 Fixed assets disposed off during the year were not substantial and therefore do not affect the going concern assumption.

ii.	 (a) The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with the third parties, has been physically verified by the 
management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. For stocks lying with the 
third parties at the year end, written confirmations have been obtained.

	 (b) 	 The procedures for the physical verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate 
in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

	 (c) 	 In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the inventory, the Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. Discrepancies noticed on verification 
between the physical stocks and the book records were not material and have been appropriately dealt with in the 
books of account.

iii.	 The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans, secured or unsecured, to or from companies, firms or other parties 
covered in the registered maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 (‘the Act’).

iv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal control system 
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchase of inventories and fixed 
assets and with regard to the sale of goods and services. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, there is no continuing failure to correct major weakness in internal control system.

v.	 (a) 	 In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the particulars of contracts or arrangements 
referred to in Section 301 of the Act have been entered in the register required to be maintained under that section.

	 (b) 	 Not applicable since value of transactions in respect of any party does not exceed five lakh rupees.

vi.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Therefore, the provisions of Section 58A and 58AA and any other 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and rules framed there under are not applicable.

vii.	 In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

viii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of 
cost records under Section 209(1) (d) of the Act for any of the products manufactured/services rendered by the Company.

ix.	 (a) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has been regular in depositing amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in 
respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ 
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales-Tax, Wealth-Tax, Service-Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material 
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.

		  According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, 
Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales-Tax, Wealth-Tax, Service-Tax, 
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31/03/2010 for the period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable.

		  As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of cess under Section 441A of the Act since the 
aforesaid Section has not yet been made effective by the Central Government.
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	 (b) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income-Tax, Sales-Tax, Wealth-Tax, 
Service-Tax, Customs Duty and Excise Duty, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account 
of disputes other than those mentioned below

Name of statute Nature of dues Amount
(in millions)

Period to the 
which amount 

relates

Forum where pending

Central Sales Tax 
Act, 1956

Demand on account of 
non-submission of statutory 
declaration forms

3.91 F.Y. 2002-03 Deputy Commissioner 
(Appeals)

Central Sales Tax 
Act, 1956

Demand on account of 
non-submission of statutory 
declaration forms

1.19 F.Y. 2003-04 Deputy Commissioner 
(Appeals)

Income Tax Act, 
1961

Demand on account of 
Assessment Order 

3.76 F.Y. 2002-03 Income Tax Appellate 
Tribunal 

x.	 The Company does not have accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and has not incurred any cash losses in the 
financial year and the immediately preceding financial year.

xi.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in payment of 
dues to its bankers or to any financial institutions. The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

xii.	 The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and 
other securities.

xiii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not chit fund or in nidhi/mutual 
benefit fund / society.

xiv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities, 
debentures and other investments.

xv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others 
from banks or financial institutions.

xvi.	 The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year.

xvii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet of the Company, 
we are of the opinion that funds raised on short-term basis have not been used for long-term investment.

xviii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has not made preferential allotment 
of shares to parties covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act.

xix.	 The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

xx.	 The Company has not raised any money by public issues.

xxi.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during 
the course of our audit.

For and on behalf of  

B. K. KHARE & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

U. B. JOSHI
PARTNER

PLACE 	 : 	PUNE 	 MEMBERSHIP NO. 044097
DATED 	 : 	29 MAY 2010 	 FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105102W
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(Currency  : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

Schedule 31/03/2010 31/03/2009 
SOURCES OF FUNDS

Shareholders'  funds  
	 Share capital 2 369.477 366.862 
	 Reserves and surplus 3 4953.857 4067.745 

5323.334 4434.607 
Deferred tax liability (net) 4 153.421 131.504 
Secured Loans 5  - 127.435 

5476.755 4693.546 
APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed and intangible assets
	 Gross block 6 1737.129 1595.885 
	 Less : Accumulated depreciation and amortisation 362.890 261.685 
	 Net book value 1374.239 1334.200 
Capital work-in-progress (including capital advances) 67.013 137.397 

1441.252 1471.597 
Investments 7 2771.124 2141.733 
Current assets, loans and advances

	 Inventories 8 282.948 602.625 
	 Contracts in progress 18.2 411.932 870.650 
	 Sundry debtors 9 1124.849 1747.533 
	 Cash and bank balances 10 1261.064 1127.778 
	 Loans and advances 11 1220.454 950.210 

4301.247 5298.796 
Less : Current liabilities and provisions

	 Current liabilities 12 2206.824 3401.600 
	 Provisions 13 830.044 816.980 

3036.868 4218.580 
Net current assets 1264.379 1080.216 

 5476.755 4693.546 
Significant accounting policies 1
Notes to the financial statements 18    
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.
As per our report attached.

Balance Sheet   as at 31/03/2010

FOR B. K. KHARE & CO. For and on behalf of Board
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

U. B. JOSHI PRAMOD CHAUDHARI SHASHANK INAMDAR 
PARTNER EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN CEO & MD
MEMBERSHIP NO.: 044097
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105102W

PLACE	 : 	PUNE DEEPAK MOGAL SIVARAMAKRISHNAN S. IYER 
DATE	 : 	29 MAY 2010 COMPANY SECRETARY DIRECTOR 
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(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

Schedule 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Income
	 Gross sales and services 6193.915 7934.542 
	 Less : excise duty 171.075 215.729 
	 Net sales and services 18.16 6022.840 7718.813 
	 Other income 14 424.517 238.034 
 6447.357 7956.847 
Expenditure
	 Cost of materials consumed 15 3433.738 3840.269 
	 Personnel cost 16 606.625 630.342 
	 Manufacturing, selling and other costs 17 933.604 1683.152 
	 Depreciation and amortisation 6 105.110 81.713 
	 Interest costs 3.300 3.870 

5082.377 6239.346 
Profit before tax, exceptional items & prior period items 1364.980 1717.501 
	 Less : Exceptional items 18.23 74.717 109.479 
Profit before tax & prior period items 1290.263 1608.022 
	 Less : Prior period items (net) 18.7 59.610  – 
Profit before tax 1230.653 1608.022 
	 Less : Provision for tax
		  - Current tax 18.22 69.885 242.157 
	  - Deferred tax 21.921 58.886 
	  - Fringe benefit tax - 9.500 
Profit after tax 1138.847 1297.479 
Balance in Profit and loss account brought forward 2538.234 1757.044 
Amounts available for appropriation 3677.081 3054.523
Appropriations
Dividend 265.947 330.176 
Tax on dividend 45.198 56.113 
Transfer to general reserve 114.000 130.000 
Balance in Profit and loss account carried forward 3251.936 2538.234 
Basic earnings per share of face value of Rs. 2 each 18.6 6.18 7.08 
Diluted earnings per share of face value of Rs. 2 each 18.6 6.16 7.02 
Significant accounting policies 1
Notes to the financial statements 18
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account.
As per our report attached.

FOR B. K. KHARE & CO. For and on behalf of Board
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

U. B. JOSHI PRAMOD CHAUDHARI SHASHANK INAMDAR 
PARTNER EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN CEO & MD
MEMBERSHIP NO.: 044097
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105102W

PLACE	 : 	PUNE DEEPAK MOGAL SIVARAMAKRISHNAN S. IYER 
DATE	 : 	29 MAY 2010 COMPANY SECRETARY DIRECTOR 

Profit and Loss Account   for the year ended 31/03/2010
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Cash Flow Statement   for the year ended 31/03/2010
(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

31/03/2010 31/03/2009 

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit before tax 1230.653 1608.022 

Adjustments for :

Loss on sale of fixed assets 0.957  0.790 

Gain on redemption of mutual fund investments (47.789) (60.798)

Surplus on liquidation of shares in subsidiary (Praj Far East Pte Limited) - (2.434)

Provision for doubtful debts and advances 10.085 201.410 

Provision for diminution in current investments 0.728 2.235 

Provision for dimunition in long-term investments - 109.479 

Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) (net) (165.265) 239.831 

Depreciation and amortisation 105.110 81.713 

Interest earned (72.474) (33.337)

Dividend from mutual fund investments (77.121) (122.752)

Interest charged 3.300 3.870 

Operating profit before working capital changes 988.184 2028.029 

Changes in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in sundry debtors 612.599 (364.185)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (including contracts in progress) 778.395 (415.787)

(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances 69.007 (83.964)

Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities (983.127) 15.004 

Increase/(decrease) in provisions (56.640) 53.503 

Cash generated from operations 1408.418 1232.600 

Direct and fringe benefit taxes paid (including taxes deducted at source), 
net of refunds

(314.003) (218.332)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1094.415 1014.268 

B. Cash Flow from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets and intangibles (84.011) (516.820)

Purchase of investments:

	 - in subsidiaries (10.795) (61.184)

	 - in mutual funds (7554.980) (9046.077)

	 - in debentures (50.000) (100.000)
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Cash Flow Statement   for the year ended 31/03/2010
(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

31/03/2010 31/03/2009 

Sale of investments

	  - in subsidiary – 5.426 

 	 - in mutual funds 7001.915 9656.258 

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 0.809 0.433 

Interest received on investments 38.538 11.388 

Dividend received on investments 77.121 122.752 

Investment in fixed deposits (246.475) (792.917)

NET CASH (USED) IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (827.878) (720.741)

C. Cash Flow from financing activities 

Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options 61.024 15.052 

Proceeds from share application money pending allotment – (0.031)

Dividend paid including dividend distribution tax (311.145) (386.289)

(Decrease)/Increase in short-term borrowings and bank overdraft (127.435) 127.435 

Interest paid (3.300) (3.870)

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (380.856) (247.703)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (114.319) 45.824 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer Schedule 18.8) 280.738 235.914

Add : effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 1.130 (1.000)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Schedule 18.8) 167.549 280.738 

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Cash Flow Statement.

As per our report attached.

FOR B. K. KHARE & CO. For and on behalf of Board
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

U. B. JOSHI PRAMOD CHAUDHARI SHASHANK INAMDAR 
PARTNER EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN CEO & MD
MEMBERSHIP NO.: 044097
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105102W

PLACE	 : 	PUNE DEEPAK MOGAL SIVARAMAKRISHNAN S. IYER 
DATE	 : 	29 MAY 2010 COMPANY SECRETARY DIRECTOR 
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1.	 Significant accounting policies
1.1	 Basis of preparation of financial statements

	 The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in India and comply with the Accounting 
Standards (‘AS’) prescribed in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and with the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956, to the extent applicable.

1.2		 Use of estimates

	 The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the 
financial statements. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively in current and future periods.

1.3		 Revenue recognition
	 a)	 Contract revenue

		  Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised when the outcome of the contract can be estimated reliably by 
reference to the percentage of completion of the contract on the Balance sheet date. Percentage of completion is 
determined as a proportion of costs incurred-to-date to the total estimated contract costs. In respect of process 
technology and design and engineering contracts percentage of completion is measured with reference to the 
milestones specified in the contract, which in the view of the management reflects the work performed and to the 
extent it is reasonably certain of recovery.

		  Contract costs include costs that relate directly to the specific contract and costs that are attributable to contract 
activity and allocable to the contract. Costs that cannot be attributed to contract activity are expensed when incurred.

		  When the final outcome of a contract cannot be reliably estimated, contract revenue is recognised only to the extent 
of costs incurred that are expected to be recoverable. Provision for expected loss is recognised immediately when it is 
probable that the total estimated contract costs will exceed total contract revenue.

		  Variations, claims and incentives are recognised as a part of contract revenue to the extent it is probable that they will 
result in revenue and are capable of being reliably measured.

	 b)	 Service revenue

		  Revenue from services is recognised as the related services are performed.

	 c)	 Product sales

		  Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership when goods are 
dispatched and the title passes to the customers, net of discounts and rebates granted. Sales are recorded exclusive 
of sales tax.

	 d)	 Interest and dividend income

		  Interest on deployment of surplus funds is recognised using the time proportion method based on the underlying 
interest rates.

		  Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
1.4	 Fixed assets and depreciation

	 Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. The cost of acquisition includes inward freight, 
duties, taxes and other directly attributable expenses.

	 Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the straight-line method pro-rata to the period of use. The rates of depreciation 
prescribed in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 have been adopted by the Company, which in the view of the 
management reflects the useful life of the related fixed asset.

	 Assets costing individually Rs. 5,000 or less are depreciated at the rate of 100%. Building and other constructions on leasehold 

Schedules to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31/03/2010

(Currency: Indian rupees millions, except share data)
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land are depreciated over the lease term or the useful life, whichever is shorter. Items of fixed assets that have been retired 
from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value and estimated net realisable value 
and are disclosed separately in the financial statements.

	 Capital work-in-progress includes the cost of fixed assets that are not ready for intended use at the Balance Sheet date and 
advances paid to acquire capital assets before the Balance Sheet date.

1.5	 Intangible assets and amortisation

	 Intangible assets are recognised when the asset is identifiable, is within the control of the Company, it is probable that the 
future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be reliably 
measured.

	 Acquired intangible assets consisting of technical know-how, brand and software, are recorded at acquisition cost and 
amortised on straight-line basis based on the following useful lives, which in management’s estimate represents the period 
during which economic benefits will be derived from their use:

Asset Useful life

Brand 10 years

Technical know-how 5-10 years

Software 5 years

1.6	 Impairment of assets

	 The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets including intangible assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indications exist, the assets recoverable amount is 
estimated, as the higher of the net selling price and the value in use. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying 
amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. If at the Balance Sheet date, there is an 
indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset 
is reinstated at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciable historical cost.

1.7		 Investments

	 Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such 
investment is made are classified as current investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value, 
which is determined for each individual investment. Cost includes related expenses such as commission / brokerages etc.

	 Long-term investments are carried at cost less any other than temporary diminution in value, determined separately for each 
individual investment.

	 Profit or loss on sale of investments is determined on the basis of weighted average carrying amount of investments  
disposed off.

1.8		 Inventories

	 Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. The cost is determined on the basis 
of the weighted average method and includes expenditure in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present 
location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of 
labour and overheads.

1.9		 Foreign currency transactions

	 Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at rates that approximate the exchange rate prevailing on the 
date of the respective transaction.

	 Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Profit and 
Loss account of the year. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year-end, are 
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translated at the year end closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognized in the Profit and Loss 
account.

	 The premium or discount arising at the inception of the forward exchange contracts related to underlying receivables and 
payables are amortised as an expense or income recognised over the period of the contracts. Gains or losses on renewal or 
cancellation of foreign exchange forward contracts are recognised as income or expense for the period.

1.10		 Leases

	 Lease payment under an operating lease is recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss account on a straightline basis 
over the lease term.

1.11	 Employee benefits

	 a)	 Short-term employee benefits

		  Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee 
benefits and are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

	 b)	 Post employment benefits (defined benefit plans)

		  The employees’ gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such defined 
benefit plan is determined at each Balance Sheet date based on an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit 
method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss account.

	 c)	 Post employment benefits (defined contribution plans)

		  Contributions to the provident fund and superannuation fund, which are defined contribution schemes, are recognised 
as an expense in the Profit and Loss account in the period in which the contribution is due.

	 d)	 Long-term employee benefits

		  Long-term employee benefits comprise of compensated absences and other employee incentives. These are measured 
based on an actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary at each Balance sheet date unless they are 
insignificant. Actuarial gains and losses and past service costs are recognised immediately in the Profit and loss 
account.

1.12	 Provisions and contingencies

	 Provision is recognised in the Balance Sheet when, the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event; it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amount 
of the obligation can be made. A disclosure by way of a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a 
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a 
present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

1.13	 Income taxes

	 Income-tax comprises of current tax and fringe benefit tax (i.e., amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with 
the income-tax law) and deferred tax (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable 
income for the year). The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised 
using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are 
recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that they will be realised in future; however, where there is 
unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is a 
virtual certainty of realisation of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and written down 
or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realised.

	 Timing differences, which reverse within the tax holiday period, do not result in tax consequence and therefore no deferred 
taxes are recognised in respect of the same. For this purpose, the timing differences, which originate first, are considered to 
reverse first.
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1.14	 Earnings per share

	 In determining earnings per share, the Company considers the net profit after tax and includes the post tax effect of any 
extra-ordinary / exceptional item. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the year. The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises 
the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share, and also the weighted average number of 
equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential equity 
shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable, had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e., the average market 
value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, 
unless issued at a later date. The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for any stock splits and 
issues of bonus shares effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.
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31/03/2010 31/03/2009

2. Share capital

Authorised capital

450,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 each 900.000 900.000 

(2009 : 450,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 each)

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

184,738,492 equity shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid up 369.477 366.862 

(2009 : 183,431,082 equity shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid up)

Of the above : 

1,307,410 equity shares of Rs. 2 each were allotted during the financial year  
2009-10 pursuant to the exercise of stock options.

269,272 equity shares of Rs. 2 each were allotted during the financial year 2008-09 
pursuant to the exercise of stock options.

91,372,879 equity shares of Rs. 2 each issued as bonus shares during the financial 
year 2007-08 by capitalisation of securities premium account.

7,300,125 equity shares of Rs. 2 each were allotted during the financial year  
2007-08 pursuant to the conversion of warrants.

588,740 equity shares of Rs. 2 each were allotted during the financial year 2007-08 
pursuant to the exercise of stock options.

40,556,260 equity shares of Rs. 2 each issued as bonus shares during the financial 
year 2005-06 by capitalisation of securities premium account.

4,320,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each were allotted to share holders of Praj 
Engineering Limited, during the financial year 2002-03 pursuant to a scheme of 
amalgamation without payment being received in cash. (*)

896,652 equity shares of Rs. 10 each (converted were allotted to shares holders 
of Praj Finance Limited, during the financial year 1997-98 pursuant to a scheme of 
amalgamation without payment being received in cash. (*)

1,350,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued as bonus shares during the financial 
year 1993-94 capitalisation of reserves. (*)

21,491 equity shares of Rs. 10 each were allotted during the financial year 1989-90 
pursuant to contracts without payment having been received in cash. (*)

(*) During the financial year 2005-06 the Company subdivided the equity shares of  
Rs. 10 each in to five shares of Rs. 2 each. Consequently these shares were 
converted into 32,940,715 equity shares of Rs.  2 each.
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(Currency: Indian rupees millions, except share data)

31/03/2010 31/03/2009

3. Reserves and surplus

Capital reserve  0.033  0.033 

Amalgamation reserve  3.063  3.063 

Securities premium account

Balance at the beginning of the year  1068.304  1053.790 

Add : additions on account of :

	 - exercise of employee stock options  58.410  14.514 

Less : utilisation during the year – – 

Balance at the end of the year  1126.714  1068.304 

General reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  458.111  328.111 

Add : transferred from Profit and loss account  114.000  130.000 

Balance at the end of the year  572.111  458.111 

Profit and loss account  3251.936  2538.234 

 4953.857  4067.745 

4. Deferred tax liability (net)

Deferred tax liability

Arising out of timing differences in depreciation  259.845  245.579 

Deferred tax asset

Arising out of timing differences in

	 - employee benefits  (11.015)  (18.825)

	 - provision for doubtful debts and advances  (23.877)  (80.150)

	 - others  (14.350)  (15.100)

	 - Long-term capital loss  (57.182) – 

Net deferred tax liability  153.421  131.504 

5. Secured Loans

Working Capital Borrowings from Banks  –  127.435 

 –  127.435 
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(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

31/03/2010 31/03/2009

7. Investments
Long-term, trade, unquoted
Subsidiaries
Pacecon Engineering Projects Limited  5.355  5.355 
308,350 (2009 : 308,350) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 
Praj Schneider Inc.  –  218.958 
Nil (2009 : 15,300) equity shares of US Dollar 1 each fully paid
Praj Far East Co., Limited  2.453  2.453 
19,598 (2009 : 19,598) equity shares of Thai Baht 100 each fully paid  
BioCnergy Europa B.V.  35.262  35.262 

300,000 (2009 : 300,000) equity shares of Euro 1 each fully paid  
Praj Jaragua Bioenergia S.A.  67.481  41.515 
2,839,451 (2009 : 1,646,267) equity shares of Brazil Rial 1 each fully paid
Sub-Total  (a)  110.551  303.543 
Long term, non-trade, quoted
AXIS FMP-Series 1-Retail Growth- 5,000,000 Units, (2009 : Nil)  50.000  –
DSP Blackrock FMP 12 Months Series 3 - Nil Units, (2009 : 5,000,000)  –  50.000 
DSP Blackrock -12 Months Series -1 - Nil Units, (2009 : 5,000,000)  –  50.000 
DSP Blackrock FMP 12 Months Series 2 - Nil Units, (2009 : 10,000,000) –  100.000 
Fortis FTP Plan A - Series 13 - Nil Units, (2009 : 10,000,000) –  100.000 
HSBC Fixed Term Series - 57 - 370 Days - Nil Units, (2009 : 5,000,000) –  50.000 
Religare 13 Months FMP - 2,000,000 Units,  (2009 : 2,000,000)  20.000  20.000 
SBI Debt Fund Series 13 Months - 10,000,000 Units, (2009 : 10,000,000)  100.000  100.000 
SBI Debt Fund SR 15 Months- 10,000,000 Units, (2009 : Nil)  100.000  –
Sundaram Plan 1 - Nil Units, (2009 : 5,000,000) –  50.000 
SBNPP FTP 367 Days Series P - 10,000,000 Units, (2009 : Nil)  100.000  –
Sundaram FTP 367 Days S8 - 5,000,000 Units, (2009 : 5,000,000)  50.000  50.000 
Redeemable Non-Convertible Secured Debentures issued by Citi Financial Consumer 
Finance (India) Limited 1500 Units (2009 : Nil)

 150.000  – 

Redeemable Non-Convertible Secured Debentures issued by Citicorp Finance (India) 
Limited Nil Units (2009 : 1000) (*)

 –  100.000 

(*)Out of the above 500 units were kept as security against Line of Credit made 
available to Subsidiary Praj Schneider Inc.
Sub-Total  (b)  570.000  670.000 
Current, non-trade, quoted
Birla Sun Life Dymanic Bond Fund - 5,637,775 Units, (2009 : 5,367,000)  62.135  59.138 
Birla Sun Life Short Term Opportunty - 10,049,002 Units, (2009 : Nil)  100.514  - 
Birla Sun Life Short Term Fund - Nil Units, (2009 : 15,286,757)  -  152.952 
Birla Sun Life Sweep Fund Dividend - 6,138,640 Units, (2009 : 7,102,303)  61.555  71.359 
BSL Dynamic Bond Fund - M - 10,050,142 Units, (2009 : Nil)  105.374  - 
BSL Interval IF Quarterly SR 1- 5,000,000 Units, (2009 : Nil)  50.000  - 
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31/03/2010 31/03/2009

7. Investments (Contd.)

Canara Robeco Liquid Plus - Nil Units, (2009 : 25,327) –  0.352 
DSP Blackrock Money Manager Fund - Nil Units, (2009 : 49,895)  –  50.000 
DWS Cash Opportunity Fund - 9,728,384 Units, (2009 : Nil)  100.000 –
DWS Ultra Short Term Bond Fund - Nil Units, (2009 : 9,962,544) –  100.530 
Fortis Money Plus - Nil Units, (2009 : 10,189,067) –  102.011 
Fortis Short Term Income Fund  - Nil Units, (2009 : 5,172,436 ) –  51.740 
HDFC Arbitrage Fund - Nil Units, (2009 : 5,088,166) –  52.039 
HDFC Floating Rate Income Fund - Nil Units, (2009 : 4,931,988) –  50.000 
IDFC Money Manager-Plan B- 30,141,165 Units, (2009 : Nil)  302.049 –
JM Money Manager Fund Super Plus - Nil Units, (2009 : 4,880,858) –  50.000 
Kotak Long Term Floater - Nil Units, (2009 : 4,986,163) –  50.263 
Kotak Quarterly Interval Plan SR 3 - 10,040,777 Units, ( 2009 : Nil)   100.408 –
LICMF Floating Rate - 29,856,645 Units, ( 2009 : Nil)  302.976 –
LICMF Saving PLS -WKLY- 10,113,911 Units, ( 2009 : Nil)  101.165 –
Principal Cash Mgmt Fund - Nil Units, (2009 : 10,055,133) –  100.640 
Principal Money Manager Fund - 9,617,135 Units, (2009 : Nil)  100.024 –
Reliance Medium Term Fund - Nil Units, (2009 : 8,955,255) –  153.130 
Reliance Mntly Intvl S - II - 4,997,252 Units, (2009 : Nil)  50.000 –
Religare - Arbitrage Fund - Nil Units, (2009 : 4,846,135) –  50.000 
Religare Active Income Fund - 10,006,525 Units, (2009 : Nil)  100.065 –
Religare Credit Opportunities Fund - 20,058,737 Units, ( 2009 : Nil)  201.202 –
Religare Liquid Fund - Nil Units, ( 2009 : 3,081,200) –  30.800 
Religare Short Term Plan - Nil Units, (2009 : 5,172,295) –  51.806 
SBI Magnum Insta Cash Fund - Dividend Daily - Nil Units, (2009 : 52,176) –  0.874 
SBI Magnum Insta Cash Fund - Dividend Weekly - Nil Units, (2009 : 15,775) –  0.178 
Tata Floater Fund - Nil Units, (2009 : 10,119,297) –  102.092 
Templeton Floating Rate Income  - 35,348,051 Units, (2009 : Nil)  353.834 –
Sub-Total  (c)  2091.301  1279.904 
Total (a) + (b) + (c)  2771.852  2253.447 
Less : Diminution in value of investments *  0.728  111.714 

Sub Total  (d)  0.728  111.714 
Grand Total (a) + (b) + (c) - (d)  2771.124  2141.733 
Note :
* Includes Diminution for Long-term investments in subsidiary Praj Schneider Inc.  –  109.479 
* Includes Dimunition in current investments  0.728  2.235 
Total  0.728  111.714 
Aggregate amount of quoted investments  2660.573  1947.669 
Market value of quoted investments  2673.570  1975.436 
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Investments purchased and sold during the year 2009-10  Units (Nos.)  Value 

7. Investments (Contd.)

Name of the scheme

Birla STF - Instl Daily 198,852  1.990 
Birla Sweep Fund Dividend  276,516,263  2794.884 
Canara Robeco Short Term  10,110,885  101.937 
Canara Robeco Treaury Adveata  96  0.001 
DSP BR Money Manager  684  0.684 
DSPBR Floating Rate Fund  50,186  50.246 
DWS Cash Opportunity Fund-Weekly  9,979,785  100.567 
DWS Credit Opportunities  15,443,305  154.744 
DWS Money Plus Fund  9,706,939  101.890 
DWS Ultra Short Term Fund  334,854  3.374 
Fortis Money Plus  10,615,433  106.205 
Fortis STIF INSTL Plus  209,212  2.093 
HDFC Cash Mgmt Treasury A  5,022,083  50.307 
HDFC Floating Rate Income Fund  152,711  1.548 
HDFC FRF Income Fund STP  3,230,705  50.000 
HDFC Short Term Plan  9,676,140  100.000 
HSBC Income Fund STI Plus  10,073,605  101.329 
ICICI Flexible Income Plan  5,287,399  101.636 
ICICI Pru STP DR Fortnight  4,223,035  50.810 
IDFC Cash Fund - Plan C-Daily  19,996,887  200.019 
JM Money Manager Fund SUP  147,677  1.519 
Kotak Flexi Debt-WKLY  4,911,874  50.035 
Kotak Floater  10,211,584  102.935 
LICMF Liquid Fund  27,324,492  300.026 
Principal Floating Rate Fund  212,714  2.127 
Reliance Medium Term Fund  323,267  5.526 
Reliance Money Manager  100,302  100.424 
Reliance Money Manage - Growth  40,379  50.000 
Religare Credit Opportunities Growth Fund  19,470,215  200.000 
Religare Liquid Fund  58,750  0.588 
Religare STP - Daily  5,260,758  52.895 
SBI Magnum Insta Cash - DIV Option  37 – 
SBI Magnum Insta Cash Fund  132  0.002 
SBNPP Ultra ST Fund WKLY  4,804,469  50.456 
Tata Floater Fund  366,301  3.693 
Templeton India Treasury Mgmt  299,827  300.028 
Templeton India Ultra SBF  4,973,155  50.211 
UTI Treasury Adv Fund  50,191  50.238 
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31/03/2010 31/03/2009

8. Inventories

Raw materials and stores  282.148  601.451 

Work-in-progress – – 

Finished goods – – 

Goods in transit  0.800  1.174 

 282.948  602.625 

9. Sundry debtors

Unsecured

Over six months

	 - Considered good (*)  152.096  449.235 

	 - Considered doubtful  58.085  223.654 

Others, considered good  972.753  1298.298 

 1182.934  1971.187 

Less : Provision for doubtful debts  58.085  223.654 

 1124.849  1747.533 

(*) includes receivable from BioCnergy Europa B.V. (Refer Schedule 18.4)  3.052 – 

10. Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand  2.671  0.586 

Balances with scheduled banks 

	 - in current accounts  164.814  280.120 

	 - in deposit accounts  1093.515  847.040 

Balances with non-scheduled banks in current accounts (*)    

	  - Citi Bank Bogota Colombian Peso Account – – 

	  - Absa International Banking , South African Rand Account  0.064  0.032 

	  - Bangkok Bank Public Co. Ltd., Thai Baht Account – – 

 1261.064  1127.778 

(*) Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year

	  - Citi Bank Bogota Colombian Peso Account –  0.127 

	  - Absa International Banking , South African Rand Account  0.165  1.014 

	  - Bangkok Bank Public Co. Ltd., Thai Baht Account –  0.004 
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31/03/2010 31/03/2009

11. Loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received (*)  104.027  178.605 
Less : Considered doubtful  14.756  18.225 

 89.271  160.380 

Advance income tax  and tax deducted at source  962.499  648.668 

Deposits  35.057  42.076 
Less : Considered doubtful  1.465  0.963 

 33.592  41.113 
Balances with excise and customs  74.620  58.342 
Advance towards share application money (*)  4.505  19.676 
Accrued interest on deposit  55.967  22.031 

 1220.454  950.210 
(*) includes advances receivable from subsidiaries - (Refer Schedule 18.4)
Praj Jaragua Bioenergia S.A.  4.505  19.676 
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year  30.671  20.098 
Pacecon Engineering Projects Limited –  14.962 
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year  16.500  14.962

Schedules To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31/03/2010
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12. Current liabilities
Creditors for goods and services :
	 - Dues to Micro and Small enterprises under MSMED Act, 2006(*)  4.937  6.153 
	 - Dues to other parties (**)  657.754  743.431 

 662.691  749.584 
Advances from customers(***)  1224.165  2204.727 
Dues to customers relating to contracts in progress (Refer Schedule 18.2)  98.687  216.348 
Provident and other funds payable  4.251  1.732 
Bonus and exgratia payable  12.451  14.696 
Other payables  198.536  209.460 
Unclaimed dividend (****)  6.043  5.053 

 2206.824  3401.600 
(*) No interest is due/payable to parties under the MSMED Act, 2006
(**) includes payables to subsidiary company BioCnergy Europa B.V. & 
Praj Far East Co.

 3.575  7.442 

(***) includes advance received from subsidiary company BioCnergy Europa B.V.  0.754  34.435 
(****) There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education 
and Protection Fund.

– –

13. Provisions
Compensated absences  36.243  34.282 
Gratuity  34.258  39.380 
Performance incentives  23.500  76.979 
Taxation  736.043  666.339 

 830.044  816.980 
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31/03/2010 31/03/2009

14. Other income
Foreign exchange fluctuation gain (net)  95.484 – 
Dividend from mutual fund investments  77.121  122.752 
Gain on redemption of mutual fund investments (net)  47.789  57.034 
Bad debt written off, recovered  109.682 – 
Interest
- on fixed deposits (tax deducted at source (Rs 16.334; 2009 : Rs. 6.162)  72.474  27.404 
Surplus on liquidation of shares in subsidiary (Praj Far East Pte Limited) –  2.434 
Miscellaneous income  21.967  28.410 

 424.517  238.034 
15. Cost of materials consumed

Raw material consumed  3375.813  3756.629 
Stores and spares consumed  57.925  83.640 

 3433.738  3840.269 
16. Personnel cost

Salaries, wages and bonus  560.497  585.868 
Contributions to provident and other funds  24.038  21.566 
Staff welfare  22.090  22.908 

 606.625  630.342 
17. Manufacturing, selling and other costs

Site expenses and labour charges  215.073  307.436 
Freight and transport  127.443  252.893 
Bad debts written off/Provision for doubtful debts and advances  10.085  201.410 
Sales commission  105.387  151.278 
Travel and conveyance  114.685  125.594 
Professional consultancy charges  56.318  54.345 
Insurance  26.059  32.618 
Rent  28.662  28.677 
Power and fuel  34.234  27.307 
Advertising and exhibition expenses  16.588  20.055 
Communication expenses  20.229  19.416 
Testing charges  11.182  15.463 
Repairs and maintenance:
 	 -  Building  0.988  11.153 
	  - Plant and Machinery  7.624  14.554 
	  - Others  21.129  41.686 
Auditors' remuneration
	  - for audit services  2.000  2.000 
	  - for taxation services  0.400  0.400 
	  - for other services  0.155  0.133 
	  - out of pocket expenses  0.031  0.063 
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)  0.957  0.790 
Provision for diminution in value of current investment  0.728  2.235 
Rates and taxes  1.610  1.980 
Miscellaneous expenses  132.037  140.328 
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss (gain) (net) –  231.338 

 933.604  1683.152
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Schedules To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31/03/2010

(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

18.	 Notes to the financial statements
18.1	 Capital commitments, contingent liabilities and secured loans

31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 
not provided for (net of advances)

73.998 62.962

Contingent liabilities

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts (primarily relating  
to performance related claims filed by customers)

20.639 20.639

Disputed demands in appeal towards income tax & sales tax

Guarantee issued in respect of obligations of a subsidiary 

8.704

-
 8.704

50.000

Unfulfilled Export Obligations under EPCG scheme to be fulfilled over 8 years
Secured Loans

Working Capital borrowings from consortium of bankers are secured by a first 
charge by way of hypothecation of Company’s inventories and book debts both 
present and future. It is further secured by way of first charge of hypothecation 
of movable fixed assets. Additionally there is collateral security by way of 
mortgage on company’s property situated at Pune.

313.170 324.753

18.2	 Disclosures pursuant to Accounting Standard 7 (Revised) – Construction Contracts

31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Contract revenue recognised during the year 5477.971 7014.613

Aggregate amount of contract costs incurred and recognised profits (less 
recognised losses)

5477.971 7014.613

Customer advances outstanding for contracts in progress 892.395 1874.136

Retention money due from customers for contracts in progress 134.746 336.438

Gross amount due from customers for contract work (presented as Contracts 
in progress) 411.932 870.650

Gross amount due to customers for contract work (presented as Dues to 
customers relating to contracts in progress) (98.687) (216.348)

18.3		 Segment reporting

	 The Company’s activities involve predominantly one business segment i.e. Process and Project Engineering, which are 
considered to be within a single business segment since these are subject to similar risks and returns. Accordingly, Process 
and Project Engineering comprise the primary basis of segmental information as set out in these financial statements, which 
therefore reflect the information required by AS 17 - Segment Reporting, with respect to primary segments.

	 The Company has identified India and Rest of the World as geographical segments for secondary segmental reporting. 
Geographical sales are segregated based on the location of the customer who is invoiced or in relation to which the sale is 
otherwise recognised. Assets other than receivables used in the Company’s business or liabilities contracted have not been 
identified to any of the reportable segments, as these are used interchangeably between segments. All assets other than 
receivables are located in India. Similarly, capital expenditure is incurred towards fixed assets located in India.
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18.3	 Segment reporting (Contd.)

	 Secondary segmental information

Particulars India Rest of the world Total
31/03/2010 31/03/2009 31/03/2010 31/03/2009 31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Segment sales 3556.014 3798.038 2466.826 3920.775 6022.840 7718.813
Segment assets 906.925 975.149 217.924 772.384 1124.849 1747.533

18.4 Related party transactions

	 a)	 Parties where control exists

Subsidiaries Pacecon Engineering Projects Limited
Praj Far East Co. Limited 
Praj Schneider Inc. (upto 28-02-2010)
BioCnergy Europa B.V. 
Praj Jaragua Bioenergia S.A.

Praj Americas Inc.  (from June 2009)

	 b) 	 Key management personnel and their relatives

Executive Chairman Mr. Pramod Chaudhari
CEO & MD Mr. Shashank Inamdar
Relative of key management personnel Mrs. Parimal Chaudhari

	 c)	 Transactions and balances with related parties have been set out below :

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Pacecon Engineering Projects Limited
Advances provided and recovered during the year 16.500 2.500
Expenses incurred and reimbursed thereof 18.182 14.962
Receivable – 14.962

Note: The Company renders certain services such as use of office space, communication etc. to the subsidiary for 
which no charges are recovered.

Praj Schneider Inc. 
Sales commission (*) 48.000 32.020
Payable

Sale of Services

–

–
0.419

7.922
Expenses incurred and reimbursed thereof (*)

(*) Includes prior period expenditure 59.610 (Nil)

29.188 0.061

BioCnergy Europa B.V.
Sales Commission

Sale of Goods & Services

8.437

401.368
14.200

705.364
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Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Payable

Expenses incurred and reimbursed thereof

Receivable

2.697

2.966

3.052

34.434

0.614

–

Praj Far East Co. Limited

Sales commission

Payable

Expenses incurred and reimbursed thereof

Purchase of goods

7.618

1.632

–

2.093

20.504

7.126

0.103

–

Praj Jaragua Bioenergia S.A. 
Capital contribution 25.966 41.508
Advance towards share application money 4.505 19.676
Praj Americas Inc.

Expenses incurred and reimbursed thereof
Pramod Chaudhari

3.362 –

Remuneration including commission on profit 60.364 65.161
Dividend 42.062 52.030
Shashank Inamdar
Remuneration including commission on profit 22.239 22.802
Dividend 2.193 2.741
Parimal Chaudhari
Commission on profit 0.945 1.125
Dividend 13.656 17.195

18.5	 Leases

	 The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for office space, equipments and residential premises for its 
employees. Certain lease arrangements provide for cancellation by either party and also contain a clause for renewal of the 
lease agreement. Lease payments on cancellable and non-cancellable operating lease arrangements debited to the Profit and 
Loss Account and the future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellable operating leases are summarised below:

31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellable leases

 - amount due within one year from the Balance sheet date 13.908 19.826
 - amount due in the period between one year and five years 17.387 33.743
 - amount due after five years 2.274 2.249
Lease payments debited to the Profit and Loss Account
 - cancellable leases 7.685 6.499
 - non-cancellable leases 20.977 22.178

Schedules To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31/03/2010

(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

18.4 Related party transactions (Contd.)



52

18.6 Earnings per share

31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing earnings 
per share

Number of shares considered as basic weighted average shares outstanding for 
computing basic earnings per share

184,136,528 183,350,588

Add : effect of dilutive issue of shares/options 670,172 1,384,680
Number of shares considered as weighted average shares and potential shares 
outstanding for computing diluted earnings per share

184,806,700 184,735,268

Computation of basic and diluted earnings per share

Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders 1138.847 1297.479
Basic earnings per equity share of Rs. 2 each 6.18 7.08
Diluted earnings per equity share of Rs. 2 each 6.16 7.02

18.7	 Prior period items (net)

	 Prior period items comprise the following:

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Sales commission 48.000 –
Others 11.610      –
Total 59.610  –

18.8	 Cash and cash equivalents

31/03/2010 31/03/2009
At the beginning of the year

Cash in hand 0.586 1.428
Balances with banks 280.152 223.046
Deposits with banks     –     11.440

 280.738  235.914
At the end of the year

Cash in hand 2.671 0.586
Balances with banks 164.878 280.152
Deposits with banks    –    –

  167.549   280.738

	 Notes:

1. Deposits with banks having maturity of more than three months aggregating to Rs. 1093.515 (2009 : 847.040) are not 
readily liquid and have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

2. Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances in relation to unclaimed dividends Rs 6.201 (2009 : 5.158)
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18.9 Quantitative information of foreign exchange instruments outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date

	 The foreign currency forward contracts outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date aggregate USD 1.750 & GBP Nil  
(2009 : USD 22.250, GBP 2.250).

	 The following foreign currency receivables/advances /payables balances are outstanding at the Balance Sheet date, which 
are not hedged by foreign exchange instruments :

Nature of exposure 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Balances in foreign currency bank accounts 56.019 1.835

Foreign currency advances (*) 36.281 28.247

Foreign currency payables representing creditors and other payables 103.316 187.673

Foreign currency payables representing advances from customers

Foreign currency receivables

466.768

153.929
1464.594

–
(*) includes advance towards share application money to Praj Jaragua Bioenergia S.A. Rs. 4.505 (2009 : 19.676).

18.10 Employee benefits

	 The disclosures in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 15 (Revised 2005) Employee Benefits are 
provided below :

	 a)	 Defined contribution plans

		  The Company has recognised Rs. 24.038 towards post employment defined contribution plans comprising of provident 
and superannuation fund in the Profit and Loss Account.

	 b)	 Defined benefit plan

		  In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company is required to provide post employment benefit to 
its employees in the form of gratuity. The Company has maintained a fund with the Life Insurance Corporation of India 
to meet its gratuity obligations. In accordance with the Standard, the disclosures relating to the Company’s gratuity 
plan are provided below :

		  Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of obligation

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Liability at the beginning of the year 58.998 44.036
Current service cost 7.199 7.229
Interest cost 4.130 3.393
Benefits paid  (1.671) (2.168)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations (1.898) 6.508
Liability at the end of the year 66.758 58.998

			  Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of fair value of plan assets

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 19.619 11.514
Expected return on plan assets 2.323 1.388
Contributions by the employer 11.000 7.000
Benefits paid (0.010) –
Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan assets (0.432) (0.283)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 32.500 19.619

Schedules To The Financial Statements for the year ended 31/03/2010
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			  Expense recognised in Profit and Loss Account

Particulars  31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Current service cost 7.199 7.229
Interest cost 4.130 3.393
Expected return on plan assets (2.323) (1.388)
Total actuarial (gain)/loss (1.466) 6.791
Total expenses included in Schedule 16 7.540 16.025

			  Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Defined benefit obligation as at end of the year 66.758 58.998
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year (32.500) (19.618)
Net liability 34.258 39.380

			  Actual return on plan assets

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Expected return on plan assets 2.323 1.388
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets (0.432) (0.283)
Actual return on plan assets 1.891 1.105

			  Principal actuarial assumptions

Particulars 31/03/2010
 (%)

31/03/2009 
 (%)

Discount rate 8.00% 7.10%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 9.25% 9.25%

Salary increment rate 8.00% 8.00%
			  Composition of plan assets

Particulars 31/03/2010
(%)

31/03/2009
(%) 

Central government securities 56.00% 56.09%

State government securities 0.00% 11.18%

Approved marketable securities 0.00% 2.96%

Bonds/debentures etc 36.00% 22.03%

Loans 0.00% 0.36%

Equity 6.00% 5.64%

Liquid fund/money market instruments 2.00% 1.74%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

			  Notes:

1. Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on actuarial expectation of the average long term rate of return 
expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations.

2. The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors on long term basis.
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18.11 Employee stock options

	 The Compensation Committee of the Company established the Employee Stock Option Plan on 23  July 2005. Employees 
covered by the Plan are granted an option to purchase shares of the Company subject to the requirements of vesting. Total 
of 8,100,265 (including impact of bonus) stock options were approved in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 
23 July 2005, of which the employees have been granted 2,759,139 stock options on 12 October 2005 (‘Grant I’), 2,311,500 
stock options on 28 December 2006 (‘Grant II’) and 3,029,626 stock options on 9 July 2009 (‘Grant III’).

	 The stock options vest in a graded manner equally over three years with each vesting taking effect on the expiry of 12 months 
from the date of grant. These can be exercised within a period of three years from the date of vesting. The stock options 
granted are exercisable at 100% of the fair market value of the underlying equity shares of the Company as on the date of 
grant.

	 	Grant I

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year (*) 1,380,774 1,616,109
Granted during the year – –
Additional options on account of allotment of bonus shares – –
Less : exercised 1,306,710 215,431
Less : cancelled 20,162 19,904
Options outstanding at the end of the year 53,902 1,380,774
Options exercisable at the end of the year 53,902 1,380,774

	 (*) Grant I exercise period has been extended by one year as approved in Board Meeting held on 9 July 2009.

	 Grant II

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,944,709 2,109,334

Granted during the year – –

Additional options on account of allotment of bonus shares – –

Less : exercised 700 53,841

Less : cancelled 83,650 110,784

Options outstanding at the end of the year 1,860,359 1,944,709

Options exercisable at the end of the year 1,204,671 1,577,405

	 Grant III

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year – –
Granted during the year 3,029,626 –
Additional options on account of allotment of bonus shares – –
Less : exercised – –
Less : cancelled 180,750 –
Options outstanding at the end of the year 2,848,876 –
Options exercisable at the end of the year – –
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18.12 Expenditure on research & development activities

	 Revenue expenditure on research and development is charged under respective heads of account in the year in which it is 
incurred. Capital expenditure on research and development is included as part of fixed assets and depreciated on the same 
basis as other fixed assets.

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Capital expenditure (excluding advances) 49.538 366.019

Revenue expenditure 95.471 61.758

18.13 Dividends remitted in foreign currency:

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Number of shareholders 2 2
Number of shares held 9,151,895 12,529,969
Year to which dividend relates 2009-10 2008-09
Amount remitted 13.179 22.553

18.14 Managerial remuneration

31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Salary and allowances 29.840 34.043
Perquisites 11.030 10.605
Contribution to provident and other funds 2.134 1.915
Commission to executive directors 39.600 41.400

82.604 87.963

Information relating to managerial remuneration does not include provision for gratuity and leave encashment, which is 
provided on an overall basis. Perquisites are valued by management at cost/fair values. 

	 Computation of net profit in accordance with Section 198 and Section 309(5) of the Companies Act, 1956

	 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Profit as per Profit and Loss Account a 1230.653 1608.022
Add
Directors remuneration 43.004 46.563
Depreciation and amortisation	 105.110 81.713
Commission 45.000 48.150
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 10.085 201.410
Exceptional item (Loss / Provision for diminution in value of investments) 74.717 109.479
Loss on sale of fixed assets 0.957 0.790
Sub-total b 278.873 488.105
Less
Depreciation and amortisation 105.110 81.713
Gain on redemption of mutual funds (net) 47.789 57.034
Sub-total c 152.899 138.747
Net profit as per Section 309(5) a+b-c 1356.627 1957.380
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Maximum remuneration payable to whole time directors

@10% of above as per Companies Act,1956

Actual remuneration paid/payable to whole time directors

Maximum Commission payable to Non-Executive Directors @ 1% 
of profits above 

135.663

 
82.604

13.566

195.738

 
87.963

19.573

Actual Commission payable to Non-Executive Directors 5.400 6.750

18.15 Consumption of raw material, intermediates, components etc.

31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Units (in ’000) Quantity Value Quantity Value

Stainless steel material – plates/coils M Ton 5,284 637.880 5,217 963.439
Other raw materials, intermediates, components, 
bought outs, spares and other hardware items 

# Numerous 2795.858 Numerous 2876.830

 3433.738 3840.269

# In the absence of a common expressible unit, it is not practical to give quantitative information in units.

18.16 Details of licensed capacity, installed capacity, production, stock of manufactured goods and turnover
	 Details of turnover

31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Quantity Value Quantity Value

Distillation, Brewery, Pollution Control, Fermentation Plants 
etc. and allied equipments (Refer Note 5)

Numerous 5370.731 Numerous 6844.915

MashTone and other equipments (Refer Note 5) Numerous 82.798 Numerous 81.494
Service income related to supervision of erection and 
commissioning activities, design and engineering services, 
software, consultancy etc. (Refer Note 4)

Not 
applicable

512.957 Not 
applicable

723.622

Scrap sales (Refer Note 4) Not 
applicable

56.354 Not 
applicable

68.782

6022.840 7718.813

	 Notes:

1. Considering the nature of the Company’s activities relating to Process and Project Engineering, it is not practical to 
provide quantitative data of installed capacity, production and stock of manufactured goods. This being a technical 
matter, management’s assessment has been relied upon by the auditors.

2. Licensed capacity is not applicable in terms of the Government of India’s notification No. S.O. 477(E) dated 25 July, 1991.

3. For paragraph 3(ii) of Part II of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the classes of goods dealt with by the 
Company are grouped under suitable product heads.

4. The Company’s income from erectioning and commissioning, design and engineering, software, consultancy and scrap 
cannot be expressed in any generic unit. Hence, it is not possible to give the quantitative details of sales and certain 
information as required under paragraphs 3, 4C and 4D of part II of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956.

5. In the absence of a common expressible unit, it is not practical to give quantitative information in units.
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18.17 Imported and indigenous raw materials, intermediates components and spares consumed during the year

31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Rs % Rs %

Raw materials, spares and consumables
Indigenous 2891.786 84 3082.925 80
Imported 541.952 16 757.344 20
 3433.738 100 3840.269 100

18.18 Value of imports on CIF basis :

31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Raw materials 166.906 405.159
Capital goods 5.617 115.810
Components and spare parts 326.721 280.445

18.19 Earnings in foreign currency:

31/03/2010 31/03/2009
FOB value of exports 2403.867 3018.071
Design and engineering services, software and consultancy 272.069 534.445

18.20 Expenditure in foreign currency :

31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Sales commission (*) 145.919 141.897
Professional consultancy 34.285 17.864
Travelling 22.419 14.431
Others (*) 60.276 42.417
(*) Includes expenditure for prior period aggregating Rs. 59.610 (2009 : Nil)

18.21 Preferential issue proceeds

31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Proceeds from preferential issue pending for utilisation  - 384.500
Utilised/paid for research and development purposes

Used for other business purposes

 -

-

     -

(369.703)

(14.797)

            -     

18.22 Taxes

	 In consonance with retrospective amendment to Section 10AA of the Income Tax Act, related to the profit derived by SEZ 
undertaking which was ascertained hitherto based on the business of the assessee instead of the business of undertaking, 
the excess provision of current tax of earlier financial years 2007-08 & 2008-09 of Rs. 131.500 is written back during the year. 
Accordingly current tax expense of Rs. 69.885 is net of the said write back.

	 Long-term capital loss is adjustable against future capital gains considering the quantum of investible surplus available with 
the Company.
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18.23 Exceptional item

	 During the year, the process of divestment of Praj Schneider Inc., the wholly owned subsidiary of the company in USA was 
completed. Consequently the loss of Rs 74.717 (net of write back of Rs 34.763) has been taken to Profit and Loss Account and 
shown under ‘exceptional items’.

18.24 Prior year comparatives

	 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

For and on behalf of the Board

PRAMOD CHAUDHARI SHASHANK INAMDAR 
EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN CEO & MD 

DEEPAK MOGAL SIVARAMAKRISHNAN S. IYER 
COMPANY SECRETARY DIRECTOR 

PLACE: PUNE
DATE: 29 MAY 2010
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I.	 Registration Details
	 Registration No.	 L|2|7|1|0|1|P|N|1|9|8|5|P|L|C|0|3|8|0|3|1
	 Date	 Month	 Year
	 Balance Sheet Date	 3	 1	 0	 3	 2	 0	 1	 0
II.	 Capital Raised during the year (Amounts in Rs. Thousands)
	 Public Issue	 Right Issue
	 N	 I	 L	 N	 I	 L
	 Bonus Issue	 Private Placement	 Other
	 N	 I	 L	 N	 I	 L	 0	 2	 6	 1	 5
III.	 Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amounts in Rs. Thousands)
	 Total Liabilities	 Total Assets
	 5	 4	 7	 6	 7	 5	 5	 5	 4	 7	 6	 7	 5	 5
	 Sources of Funds
	 Paid up Capital	 Reserves & Surplus
	 3	 6	 9	 4	 7	 7	 4	 9	 5	 3	 8	 5	 7
	 Secured Loan	 Unsecured Loan
				    N	 I	 L	 N	 I	 L
	 Deferred Tax Liability (Net)
	 1	 5	 3	 4	 2	 1
	 Application of Funds
	 Net Fixed Assets	 Investments
	 1	 4	 4	 1	 2	 5	 2	 2	 7	 7	 1	 1	 2	 4
	 Net Current assets	 Miscellaneous Expenditure
	 1	 2	 6	 4	 3	 7	 9	 N	 I	 L
	 Accumulated Losses
	 N	 I	 L
IV.	 Performance of the Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
	 Total Income	 Total Expenditure
	 6	 4	 4	 7	 3	 5	 7	 5	 2	 1	 6	 7	 0	 4
	 Profit Before Tax	 Profit After Tax
	 1	 2	 3	 0	 6	 5	 3	 1	 1	 3	 8	 8	 4	 7
	 Earning per Share	 Dividend Rate %
	 0	 6	 .	 1	 8	 7	 2		
V.		 Generic Names of Three Principal Products / Services of Company (as per monetary terms)	
		  Item Code	

8 4 1 9 4 0 2 0
D I S T I L L E R Y P L A N T S
E Q U I P M E N T

8 4 3 8 4 0 4 0
B R E W E R Y M A C H I N E R Y

8 5 2 4 9 1 1 3
I T S O F T W A R E  A N D
I T E N A B L E D
S E R V I C E S

				  

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile

For and on behalf of the Board
PRAMOD CHAUDHARI SHASHANK INAMDAR 
EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN CEO & MD 
DEEPAK MOGAL SIVARAMAKRISHNAN S. IYER 
COMPANY SECRETARY DIRECTOR 
PLACE	: 	PUNE
DATE	 : 	29 MAY 2010
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Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

To the Board of Directors of Praj Industries Limited

We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of Praj Industries Limited (‘the Company’ or ‘the parent Company’) 
and its subsidiaries (as per list appearing in schedule 1.3 of the consolidated financial statements) ‘collectively referred to as  
‘‘the Group’’, as at 31 March 2010, and also the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended on that date annexed thereto.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management and have been prepared by the management on 
the basis of separate financial statements and other financial information regarding components. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

1.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinion.

2.	 We did not audit the financial statements of Praj Far East Co. Ltd. and BioCnergy Europa B.V. whose financial statements 
reflect total assets of Rs. 269.313 million as at 31 March 2010, total revenues of Rs. 1506.421 million and net cash inflows 
of Rs. 118.705 million for the year ended on that date. These financial statements and other financial information have been 
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us. Our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included 
in respect of these subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

3.	 The consolidated financial statements include unaudited financial statements of subsidiaries- Praj Jaragua Bioenergia S.A. 
and Praj Schneider Inc. (included up to the date of divestment of subsidiary 28 February, 2010) whose financial statements 
reflect total assets of Rs. 7.167 million as at 31 March 2010, total revenues of Rs. 126.719 million and net cash outflows of 
Rs. 16.156 million for the year ended on that date and on which we have relied upon, based solely on certification by the 
Company’s management.

4.	 We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company’s management in accordance with 
the requirements of Accounting Standard -21, Consolidated Financial Statements, prescribed in the Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2006.

5.	 Based on our audit and on consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of subsidiaries 
and on the financial information of the components and read with Para 3 above, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, the attached consolidated financial statements, read with the notes 
thereon, give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

	 a)	 In the case of the consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the group as at 31 March 2010;

	 b)	 In the case of the consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the Profit for the year ended on that date; and

	 c)	 In the case of the consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For and on behalf of

B. K. KHARE & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

U. B. JOSHI
PARTNER

PLACE 	 : 	PUNE 	 MEMBRSHIP NO. 44097
DATED 	 : 	29 MAY 2010 	 FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105102W
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Consolidated Balance Sheet  as at 31 March 2010
(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

Schedule 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
SOURCES OF FUNDS

Shareholders' funds  
	 Share capital 2 369.477 366.862 
	 Reserves and surplus 3 4908.715 3982.415 

5278.192 4349.277 
Deferred tax liability (net) 4 119.022 106.659 
Secured Loans 5 – 181.638 
Minority Interest 36.960 27.496 

5434.174 4665.070 
APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed and Intangible assets
Goodwill 2.269 60.734 
	 Gross block 6 1743.766 1631.933 
	 Less : Accumulated depreciation and amortisation 365.049 290.579 
	 Net book value 1378.717 1341.354 
Capital work-in-progress (including capital advances) 67.013 137.397 

1447.999 1539.485 
Investments 7 2660.683 1948.594 
Current assets, loans and advances

	 Inventories 8 331.465 899.372 
	 Contracts in progress 18.2 419.850 871.902 
	 Sundry debtors 9 1185.158 1866.769 
	 Cash and bank balances 10 1535.378 1293.403 
	 Loans and advances 11 1261.275 984.432 

4733.126 5915.878 
Less: Current liabilities and provisions

	 Current liabilities 12 2562.595 3892.605 
	 Provisions 13 845.039 846.282 

3407.634 4738.887 
Net current assets 1325.492 1176.991 
 5434.174 4665.070 
Significant accounting policies 1   
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 18
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Balance sheet.

As per our report attached.
FOR B. K. KHARE & CO. For and on behalf of Board
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
U. B. JOSHI PRAMOD CHAUDHARI SHASHANK INAMDAR 
PARTNER EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN CEO & MD
MEMBERSHIP NO. 044097
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105102W

PLACE	 : 	PUNE DEEPAK MOGAL SIVARAMAKRISHNAN S. IYER 
DATE	 : 	29 MAY 2010 COMPANY SECRETARY DIRECTOR 
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 March 2010
(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

Schedule 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Income

	 Gross sales and services 7515.473 9757.903 
	 Less: excise duty 171.075 215.729 
	 Net sales and services 7344.398 9542.174 
	 Other income 14 456.695 248.382 
 7801.093 9790.556 
Expenditure

	 Cost of materials consumed 15 3153.873 4439.273 
	 Personnel cost 16 697.966 853.669 
	 Manufacturing, selling and other costs 17 2517.225 2840.891 
	 Depreciation and amortisation 6 107.350 88.721 
	 Interest costs 3.590 5.557 

6480.004 8228.111 

Profit before tax & exceptional items 1321.089 1562.445 
	 Less: Exceptional items 18.12 40.184 109.478 
Profit before tax 1280.905 1452.967 
	 Less: Provision for tax
		   - Current tax 18.11 70.218 249.893 
		   - Deferred tax 12.364 18.169 
		   - Fringe benefit tax – 9.500 
Profit after tax before Minority Ineterst 1198.323 1175.405 
Minority interest 2.467 (36.543)
Net profit after Minority interest 1195.856 1211.948 

Balance in Profit and Loss Account brought forward 2434.484 1738.825 
Amounts available for appropriation 3630.340 2950.773 
Appropriations
Dividend 265.947 330.176 
Tax on dividend 45.198 56.113 
Transfer to general reserve 114.000 130.000 
Balance in Profit and loss account carried forward 3205.195 2434.484 
Basic earnings per share of face value of Rs. 2 each 18.6 6.49 6.61 
Diluted earnings per share of face value of Rs. 2 each 18.6 6.47 6.56 
Significant accounting policies 1
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 18
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Profit and loss account.

As per our report attached.

FOR B. K. KHARE & CO. For and on behalf of Board
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
U. B. JOSHI PRAMOD CHAUDHARI SHASHANK INAMDAR 
PARTNER EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN CEO & MD
MEMBERSHIP NO. 044097
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105102W

PLACE	 : 	PUNE DEEPAK MOGAL SIVARAMAKRISHNAN S. IYER 
DATE	 : 	29 MAY 2010 COMPANY SECRETARY DIRECTOR 
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement  for the year ended 31 March 2010
(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data) 

31/03/2010 31/03/2009

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit before tax  1280.905  1452.967 

Adjustments for:

Loss on sale of fixed assets  1.028  0.790 

Gain on redemption of mutual fund investments  (47.789)  (58.068)

Surplus on liquidation of shares in subsidiary (Praj Far East Pte Limited)  –  (2.434)

Provision for doubtful debts and advances  13.701  201.410 

Provision for diminution in current investments  0.728  2.236 

Exceptional item  40.184  –

Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) (net)  (165.265)  239.831 

Depreciation and amortisation  107.350  88.721 

Interest earned  (75.454)  (29.575)

Dividend from mutual fund investments  (77.136)  (122.804)

Interest charged  3.590  5.557 

Operating profit before working capital changes  1081.842  1778.631 

Changes in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in sundry debtors  681.611  (345.164)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (including contracts in progress)  1019.961  (712.201)

(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances  70.477  (43.837)

Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities  (1153.123)  401.633 

Increase/(decrease) in provisions  (70.012)  61.506 

Cash generated from operations  1630.756  1140.568 

Direct and fringe benefit taxes paid (including taxes deducted at source), 
net of refunds  (321.038)  (233.125)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  1309.718  907.443 

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets and intangibles  (86.685)  (524.973)

Purchase of investments

- in mutual funds  (7616.978)  (9047.010)

- in debentures  (50.000)  (100.000)

Sale of investments

 - in mutual funds  7001.950  9758.466 

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  0.809  0.431 

Proceeds from liquidation of subsidiary –  5.426 



Annual Report 2009-10

65

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement  for the year ended 31 March 2010
(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data) 

31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Interest received on investments 40.476 7.203 

Dividend received on investments 77.136 122.804 

Investment in fixed deposits (248.670) (814.289)

NET CASH (USED) IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (881.962) (591.942)

C. Cash flow from financing activities 

Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options  61.024 15.053 

Proceeds from share application money pending allotment – (0.031)

Dividend paid including dividend distribution tax (311.145) (386.289)

(Decrease)/Increase in short-term borrowings and bank overdraft (181.638) 165.330 

Interest paid (3.590) (5.557)

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (435.349) (211.494)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (7.593) 104.007 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer schedule 18.7) 400.826 303.245 

Less: Cash & Cash Equivalent on sale/liquidation of subsidiaries – (4.580)

Add: effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  1.130 (1.846)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Schedule 18.7) 394.363 400.826 

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Cash flow statement.

As per our report attached

FOR B. K. KHARE & CO. For and on behalf of Board
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
U. B. JOSHI PRAMOD CHAUDHARI SHASHANK INAMDAR 
PARTNER EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN CEO & MD
MEMBERSHIP NO. 044097
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105102W

PLACE	 : 	PUNE DEEPAK MOGAL SIVARAMAKRISHNAN S. IYER 
DATE	 : 	29 MAY 2010 COMPANY SECRETARY DIRECTOR 
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1. 	 Significant accounting policies:

1.1	 Basis of preparation of financial statements

	 The Consolidated financial statements of Praj Industries Limited (the ‘Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively 
referred to as ‘the Group’), have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in India and comply with the Accounting 
Standards (‘AS’) prescribed in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. 

1.2	 Use of estimates

	 The preparation of Consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the 
date of the financial statements. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

1.3	 Basis of consolidation

	 These Consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Praj Industries Limited and its subsidiaries. The 
subsidiaries considered in the Consolidated financial statements are summarised below:

Name of the subsidiary Country of incorporation Percentage shareholding  
in equity shares

Pacecon Engineering Projects Ltd. India 99.53%
Praj Far East Co. Ltd. Thailand 100.00%
Praj Schneider Inc. (formerly C.J. Schneider Inc.)
(upto 28 February 2010)

United States of America 100.00%

BioCnergy Europa B.V. Netherlands 60.00%
Praj Jaragua Bioenergia S.A. Brazil 54.00%

	 These Consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the principles and procedures prescribed by 
Accounting Standard 21- "Consolidated Financial Statements" ('AS-21'). The financial statements of the Parent Company and 
its subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating intra-group balances/ transactions and resulting unrealized profits in full.

	 The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other 
events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Parent Company’s 
separate financial statements.

	 The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiary Company over the net assets as on the date of acquisition is 
recognised in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be.

	 The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in a subsidiary and the carrying amount of its assets less 
liabilities as of the date of disposal is recognised in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account as the profit or loss on disposal 
of investment in subsidiary.

	 Minority Interest's share of net profit in consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the income 
of the Group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company.

	 Minority Interest's share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet separate from liabilities and the equity of the Parent company's shareholders.

1.4	 Goodwill arising on consolidation

	 The goodwill recorded in these Consolidated financial statements has not been amortised, but instead evaluated for 
impairment. The Group evaluates the carrying amount of its goodwill whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that its carrying amount may be impaired, for diminution other than temporary. 

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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1.5	 Revenue recognition

	 a)	 Contract revenue 

		  Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised when the outcome of the contract can be estimated reliably by 
reference to the percentage of completion of the contract on the Balance Sheet date. Percentage of completion is 
determined as a proportion of costs incurred-to-date to the total estimated contract costs. In respect of process 
technology and design and engineering contracts percentage of completion is measured with reference to the 
milestones specified in the contract, which in the view of the management reflects the work performed and to the 
extent it is reasonably certain of recovery. 

		  Contract costs include costs that relate directly to the specific contract and costs that are attributable to contract 
activity and allocable to the contract. Costs that cannot be attributed to contract activity are expensed when incurred.

		  When the final outcome of a contract cannot be reliably estimated, contract revenue is recognised only to the extent 
of costs incurred that are expected to be recoverable. Provision for expected loss is recognised immediately when it is 
probable that the total estimated contract costs will exceed total contract revenue. 

		  Variations, claims and incentives are recognised as a part of contract revenue to the extent it is probable that they will 
result in revenue and are capable of being reliably measured. 

	 b)	 Service revenue 

		  Revenue from services is recognised as the related services are performed. 

	 c)	 Product sales

		  Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership when goods are 
dispatched and the title passes to the customers, net of discounts and rebates granted. Sales are recorded exclusive 
of sales tax. 

	 d)	 Interest and dividend income

		  Interest on deployment of surplus funds is recognised using the time proportion method based on the underlying 
interest rates. 

		  Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
1.6	 Fixed assets and depreciation

	 Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. The cost of acquisition includes inward freight, 
duties, taxes and other directly attributable expenses. 

	 Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the straightline method based on useful lives of assets estimated by the 
management.

	 Assets costing individually Rs. 5,000 or less are depreciated at the rate of 100%. Building and other constructions on leasehold 
land are depreciated over the lease term or the useful life, whichever is shorter. Items of fixed assets that have been retired 
from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value and estimated net realisable value 
and are disclosed separately in the Consolidated financial statements. 

	 Capital work-in-progress includes the cost of fixed assets that are not ready for intended use at the Balance Sheet date and 
advances paid to acquire capital assets before the Balance Sheet date.

1.7	 Intangible assets and amortisation

	 Intangible assets are recognised when the asset is identifiable, is within the control of the Company, it is probable that the 
future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be reliably 
measured.

	 Acquired intangible assets consisting of technical know how, brand and software, are recorded at acquisition cost and 
amortised on straight-line basis on the useful lives, which in management’s estimate represents the period during which 
economic benefits will be derived from their use.

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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1.8	 Impairment of assets

	 The carrying amounts of assets including intangible assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indications exist, the assets recoverable amount is estimated, as the 
higher of the net selling price and the value in use. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an 
asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. If at the Balance Sheet date, there is an indication that a 
previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reinstated at 
the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciable historical cost. 

1.9	 Investments

	 Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such 
investment is made are classified as current investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value, 
which is determined for each individual investment. Cost includes related expenses such as commission/brokerages etc.

	 Long-term investments are carried at cost less any other than temporary diminution in value, determined separately for each 
individual investment. 

	 Profit or Loss on sale of investments is determined on the basis of weighted average carrying amount of investments disposed off.
1.10	 Inventories

	 Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. The cost is determined on the basis 
of the weighted average method and includes expenditure in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present 
location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of 
labour and overheads. 

1.11	 Foreign currency transactions

	 Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at rates that approximate the exchange rate prevailing on the 
date of the respective transaction.

	 Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Profit and 
Loss Account of the year. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year end, are 
translated at the year end closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognized in the Profit and Loss 
Account. 

	 The premium or discount arising at the inception of the forward exchange contracts related to underlying receivables and 
payables are amortised as an expense or income recognised over the period of the contracts. Gains or losses on renewal or 
cancellation of foreign exchange forward contracts are recognised as income or expense for the period. 

1.12	 Foreign currency translation 

	 The Consolidated financial statements are reported in Indian rupees. Pursuant to paragraph 24 of AS-11 (revised 2003), the 
financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries, being non-integral operations, are translated into Indian rupees as follows:

	 a)	 Income and expense items are translated by using a monthly simple average exchange rate for the period.

	 b)	 Assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary are translated at the closing rate.

	 c)	 All resulting exchange differences are accumulated in a foreign currency translation reserve which is reflected under 
Reserves and surplus.	

1.13	 Leases 

	 Lease payment under an operating lease is recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account on a straightline basis 
over the lease term.

1.14	 Employee benefits

	 a)	 Short-term employee benefits

		  Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee 
benefits and are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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	 b)	 Post employment benefits (defined benefit plans)

		  The employees’ gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such defined 
benefit plan is determined at each Balance Sheet date based on an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit 
method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account.

	 c)	 Post employment benefits (defined contribution plans)

		  Contributions to the provident fund and superannuation fund, which are defined contribution schemes, are recognised 
as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account in the period in which the contribution is due.

	 d)	 Long-term employee benefits

		  Long-term employee benefits comprise of compensated absences and other employee incentives. These are measured 
based on an actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date unless they are 
insignificant. Actuarial gains and losses and past service costs are recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss 
Account. 

1.15	 Provisions and contingencies

	 Provision is recognised in the Balance sheet when, the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event; it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amount 
of the obligation can be made. A disclosure by way of a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a 
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a 
present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 

1.16	 Income taxes 

	 Income-tax comprises of current tax and fringe benefit tax (i.e., amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with 
the respective income-tax laws of each country) and deferred tax (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between 
accounting income and taxable income for the period). The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred 
tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the Balance 
Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that they will be realised in 
future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are 
recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of realisation of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance 
Sheet date and written down or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be) to 
be realised. 

	 Timing differences, which reverse within the tax holiday period, do not result in tax consequence and therefore no deferred 
taxes are recognised in respect of the same. For this purpose, the timing differences, which originate first, are considered to 
reverse first.

1.17	 Earnings per share

	 In determining earnings per share, the Group considers the net profit after tax and includes the post tax effect of any 
extra-ordinary/exceptional item. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the year. The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises 
the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share, and also the weighted average number of 
equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential equity 
shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable, had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e., the average market 
value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, 
unless issued at a later date. The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for any stock splits and 
issues of bonus shares effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010

(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

31/03/2010  31/03/2009

2. Share capital

Authorised capital

450,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 each  900.000  900.000 

(2009 : 450,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 each)

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

184,738,492 equity shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid up  369.477  366.862 
(2009: 183,431,082 equity shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid up)

1,307,410 equity shares of Rs. 2 each were allotted during the financial year 
2009-10 pursuant to the exercise of stock options.

269,272 equity shares of Rs. 2 each were allotted during the financial year 
2008-09 pursuant to the exercise of stock options.

91,372,879 equity shares of Rs. 2 each issued as bonus shares during the 
financial year 2007-08 by capitalisation of securities premium account.

7,300,125 equity shares of Rs. 2 each were allotted during the financial year 
2007-08 pursuant to the conversion of warrants.

588,740 equity shares of Rs. 2 each were allotted during the financial year  
2007-08 pursuant to the exercise of stock options.

40,556,260 equity shares of Rs. 2 each issued as bonus shares during the 
financial year 2005-06 by capitalisation of securities premium account.

4,320,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each were allotted to share holders of Praj 
Engineering Limited, during the financial year 2002-03 pursuant to a scheme of 
amalgamation without payment being received in cash. (*)

896,652 equity shares of Rs. 10 each (converted were allotted to shares holders 
of Praj Finance Limited, during the financial year 1997-98 pursuant to a scheme 
of amalgamation without payment being received in cash. (*)

1,350,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued as bonus shares during the 
financial year 1993-94 capitalisation of reserves. (*)

21,491 equity shares of Rs. 10 each were allotted during the financial year 
1989-90 pursuant to contracts without payment having been received in cash. (*)

(*) 	During the financial year 2005-06 the Company subdivided the equity shares  
of Rs. 10 each in to 5 shares of Rs. 2 each. Consequently these shares were 
converted in to 32, 940, 715 equity shares of Rs. 2 each.
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010

(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

31/03/2010  31/03/2009

3. Reserves and Surplus

Capital reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  0.032  3.627 

Less : on liquidation of subsidiary  –  3.595 

 0.032  0.032 

Amalgamation reserve  3.063  3.063 

Securities premium account

Balance at the beginning of the year  1068.304  1053.789 

Add : additions on account of:

	 - exercise of employee stock options  58.409  14.515 

Balance at the end of the year  1126.713  1068.304 

Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  14.407  2.661 

Add: due to transactions during the year  (14.795)  11.746 

Balance at the end of the year  (0.388)  14.407 

General reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  462.125  330.366 

Add : transferred from Profit and loss account  114.000  130.000 

Less : Adjustment related to erstwhile subsidiary  (2.025)  1.759 

Balance at the end of the year  574.100  462.125 

Profit and loss account  3205.195  2434.484 

 4908.715  3982.415 

4. Deferred tax liability (net)

Deferred tax liability

Arising out of timing differences in depreciation  259.845  245.579 

Deferred tax asset

Arising out of timing differences in

- employee benefits  (11.015)  (18.825)

- provision for doubtful debts and advances  (23.873)  (80.150)

- others  (48.753)  (39.945)

- Long-term capital loss (Refer Schedule 18.11)  (57.182)  – 

Net deferred tax liability  119.022  106.659 

5. Secured Loans

Working Capital Borrowings from Banks  –  181.638 

 –  181.638 
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010

(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

 31/03/2010 31/03/2009

7. Investments

Long-term, non-trade, quoted

Investment in Mutual Funds  420.000  570.000 

Redeemable Non-Convertible Secured Debentures issued by CitiFinancial 
Consumer Finance (India) Limited 1500 Units (2009 : Nil)

 150.000 –

Redeemable Non-Convertible Secured Debentures issued by Citicorp Finance 
(India) Limited Nil Units (2009 : 1000)*

–  100.000 

*Out of the above 500 units are kept as security against Line of Credit made 
available to Subsidiary Praj Schneider Inc.

 

Sub-Total (a)  570.000  670.000 

Current, non-trade, quoted

Investment in Mutual Funds  2091.301  1279.904 

Less : Provision for diminution in value of investment  0.728  2.236 

Sub-Total (b)  2090.573  1277.668 

Current, non-trade, unquoted

Investment in National Saving Certificates  0.008  0.008 

Investment in Shares  0.102  0.918 

Sub-Total (c)  0.110  0.926 

Grand Total (a) + (b) +( c )  2660.683  1948.594 

8. Inventories

Raw materials and stores 330.665 898.198 

Work-in-progress – – 

Finished goods – – 

Goods in transit 0.800 1.174 

331.465 899.372 

9. Sundry debtors

Unsecured

Over six months

	 - Considered good 148.519 107.058 

	 - Considered doubtful 61.662 223.655 

Others, considered good 1036.639 1759.711 

1246.820 2090.424 

Less : Provision for doubtful debts 61.662 223.655 
1185.158 1866.769 
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(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

31/03/2010  31/03/2009

10. Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand 3.624 1.387 

Balances with banks 

	 - in current accounts 389.140 397.956 

	 - in deposit accounts 1142.614 894.060 

1535.378 1293.403 

11. Loans and advances

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 116.666 204.216 

Less : Considered doubtful 14.796 18.225 

101.870 185.991 

Advance income tax and tax deducted at source 988.665 667.807 

Deposits 35.592 42.497 

Less : Considered doubtful 1.465 0.963 

34.127 41.534 

Balances with excise and customs 79.182 66.647 

Accrued interest on deposit 57.431 22.453 

1261.275 984.432 

12. Current liabilities

Creditors for goods and services :

- Dues to Micro and Small enterprises under MSMED Act, 2006. 4.937 6.153 

- Dues to other parties 812.832 797.029 

817.769 803.182 

Advances from customers 1369.180 2240.502 

Dues to customers relating to contracts in progress (Refer Schedule 18.2) 110.899 234.236 

Provident and other funds payable 4.712 2.382 

Bonus and exgratia payable 12.451 14.696 

Other payables 241.541 592.554 

Unclaimed dividend 6.043 5.053 

2562.595 3892.605 

13. Provisions

Compensated absences 36.243 47.654 

Gratuity 34.258 39.380 

Performance incentives 23.500 76.979 

Income Tax 751.038 682.269 

845.039 846.282 

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

31/03/2010 31/03/2009 

14. Other income
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss (gain) (net)  94.429 – 
Dividend from mutual fund investments  77.136  122.804 
Gain on redemption of mutual fund investments (net)  47.789  58.068 
Bad debt written off, recovered  123.664  0.378 
Interest  
- on fixed deposits  75.454  29.575 
Surplus on liquidation of shares in subsidiary (Praj Far East Pte Limited)  -  2.434 
Miscellaneous income  38.223  35.123 

 456.695  248.382 
15. Cost of materials consumed

Raw material consumed  3095.946  4355.702 
Stores and spares consumed  57.927  83.571 
Decrease/(Increase) in inventores  – – 

 3153.873  4439.273 
16. Personnel cost

Salaries, wages and bonus  647.284  797.099 
Contributions to provident and other funds  28.427  33.232 
Staff welfare  22.255  23.338 

 697.966  853.669 
17. Manufacturing, selling and other costs

Site expenses and labour charges  429.861  286.195 
Freight and transport  127.328  252.921 
Bad debts written off/Provision for doubtful debts and advances  13.701  229.716 
Sales commission  89.333  84.554 
Travel and conveyance  117.581  215.601 
Professional consultancy charges  1405.296  1103.827 
Insurance  37.136  50.379 
Rent  32.506  43.566 
Power and fuel  34.614  27.363 
Advertising and exhibition expenses  20.179  35.174 
Communication expenses  23.243  26.541 
Testing charges  11.192  15.463 
Repairs and maintenance:
 - Building  1.224  11.157 
 - Plant and Machinery  7.624  14.554 
 - Others  22.335  46.543 
Auditors' remuneration: 
 - for audit services  2.991  2.608 
 - for taxation services  0.400  0.400 
 - for other services  0.155  0.233 
 - out of pocket expenses  0.031  0.069 
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)  1.028  0.790 
Provision for diminution in value of current investment  0.728  2.236 
Rates and taxes  1.610  1.980 
Miscellaneous expenses  137.129  155.020 
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss (gain) (net) –  234.001 

 2517.225  2840.891 

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

18.	 Notes to the Consolidated financial statements

18.1	 Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 
not provided for (net of advances)

73.998 62.962

Contingent liabilities

Claims against group not acknowledged as debts (primarily relating to 
performance related claims filed by customers)

Disputed demands in appeal towards income tax & sales tax

21.041

8.704

21.041

8.704

Unfulfilled Export Obligations under EPCG scheme to be fulfilled over 8 years
Secured Loans

Working Capital borrowings from banks are secured by a first charge by way 
of hypothecation of company’s inventories and book debts both present and 
future. It is further secured by way of first charge of hypothecation of movable 
fixed assets and debentures. Additionally there is collateral security by way of 
mortgage on company’s property situated at Pune.

313.170 324.753

18.2		 Disclosures pursuant to Accounting Standard 7 (Revised) – Construction Contracts

31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Contract revenue recognised during the year 5675.704 7246.627

Aggregate amount of contract costs incurred and recognised profits 
(less recognised losses)

5675.704 7246.627

Customer advances outstanding for contracts in progress 915.153 1888.527

Retention money due from customers for contracts in progress 138.330 348.643

Gross amount due from customers for contract work (presented as Contracts 
in progress) 

419.850 871.902

Gross amount due to customers for contract work (presented as Dues to 
customers relating to contracts in progress)

(110.899) (234.236)

18.3 Segment reporting

	 The Group’s activities involve predominantly one business segment i.e., Process and Project Engineering, which are 
considered to be within a single business segment since these are subject to similar risks and returns. Accordingly, Process 
and Project Engineering comprise the primary basis of segmental information as set out in these financial statements, which 
therefore reflect the information required by AS 17 - Segment Reporting, with respect to primary segments.

	 The Group has identified India and Rest of the World as geographical segments for secondary segmental reporting. 
Geographical sales are segregated based on the location of the customer who is invoiced or in relation to which the sale 
is otherwise recognised. Assets other than receivables used in the Group’s business or liabilities contracted have not been 
identified to any of the reportable segments, as these are used interchangeably between segments.

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

	 Secondary segmental information

Particulars India Rest of the world Total

31/03/2010 31/03/2009 31/03/2010 31/03/2009 31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Segment sales 3753.748 4030.052 3590.650 5512.122 7344.398 9542.174

Segment assets 969.940 1074.869 215.218 791.901 1185.158 1866.770

18.4	 Related party transactions
	 a)	 Key management personnel and their relatives

Executive Chairman Mr. Pramod Chaudhari

CEO & MD Mr. Shashank Inamdar

Relative of key management personnel Mrs. Parimal Chaudhari

	 b)	 Transactions and balances with related parties have been set out below :

Particulars  31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Pramod Chaudhari

Remuneration including commission on profit 60.364 65.161

Dividend 42.062 52.030

Shashank Inamdar

Remuneration including commission on profit 22.239 22.802

Dividend 2.193 2.741

Parimal Chaudhari

Commission on profit 0.945 1.125

Dividend 13.656 17.195

18.5		 Leases

	 The Group has entered into operating lease arrangements for office space, equipments and residential premises for its 
employees. Certain lease arrangements provide for cancellation by either party and also contain a clause for renewal of the 
lease agreement. Lease payments on cancellable and non-cancellable operating lease arrangements debited to the Profit and 
Loss and the future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellable operating leases are summarised below :

31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Future minimum lease payments in respect of noncancellable leases

	 - amount due within one year from the Balance Sheet date 13.908 19.826

	 - amount due in the period between one year and five years 17.387 33.743

	 - amount due after five years 2.274 2.249

Lease payments debited to the Profit and loss account

	 - cancellable leases 11.580 21.388

	 - non cancellable leases 20.926 22.177

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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18.6		 Earnings per share

 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing earnings 
per share
Number of shares considered as basic weighted average shares outstanding 184,136,528 183,350,588
Add: effect of dilutive issue of shares / options 670,172 1,384,680
Number of shares considered as weighted average shares and potential shares 
outstanding for computing diluted earnings per share

184,806,700 184,735,268

Computation of basic and diluted earnings per share
Net profit after tax and minority Interest attributable to equity shareholders 1195.856 1211.948
Basic earnings per equity share of Rs. 2 each 6.49 6.61
Diluted earnings per equity share of Rs. 2 each  6.47  6.56

18.7		 Cash and cash equivalents

 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
At the beginning of the year
Cash in hand 1.387 2.146
Balances with banks 397.956 275.449
Deposits with banks  1.483   25.650

400.826 303.245
At the end of the year
Cash in hand 3.624 1.387
Balances with banks 389.140 397.956
Deposits with banks  1.599  1.483

394.363 400.826

	 Notes:

1. Deposits with banks having maturity of more than three months aggregating to Rs. 1141.015 (2009 : 892.577) are 
not readily liquid and have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

2. Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances in relation to unclaimed dividends Rs 6.201 (2009 : 5.158)
18.8		 Quantitative information of foreign exchange instruments outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date

	 The foreign currency forward contracts outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date aggregate USD  1.750 & GBP Nil 
(2009: USD 22.250, GBP 2.250).

	 The following foreign currency receivables/payables balances are outstanding at the Balance Sheet date, which are not 
hedged by derivative instruments:

Nature of exposure  31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Balances in foreign currency bank accounts 56.019 1.835

Foreign currency advances 31.776 8.571

Foreign currency payables representing creditors and other payables 96.689 130.627

Foreign currency payables representing advances from customers

Foreign currency receivables

465.886

146.420

1464.594

–
18.9	 Employee benefits

	 The disclosures in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 15 (Revised 2005) Employee Benefits are 
provided below :

(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)
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	 a)	 Defined contribution plans

		  The Holding company has recognised Rs. 28.427 towards post employment defined contribution plans comprising of 
provident and superannuation fund in the Profit and loss account.

	 b)	 Defined benefit plan

		  In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Holding company is required to provide post employment 
benefit to its employees in the form of gratuity. The Holding company has maintained a fund with the Life Insurance 
Corporation of India to meet its gratuity obligations. In accordance with the Standard, the disclosures relating to the 
Holding company’s gratuity plan are provided below :

			  Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of obligation

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Liability at the beginning of the year 58.998 44.036 

Current service cost 7.199 7.229

Interest cost 4.130 3.393

Benefits paid (1.671) (2.168)

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations (1.898) 6.508

Liability at the end of the year 66.758 58.998

		 	 Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of fair value of plan assets

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 19.619 11.514

Expected return on plan assets 2.323 1.388

Contributions by the employer 11.000 7.000

Benefits paid (0.010) –

Actuarial (gain) / loss on plan assets (0.432) (0.283)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 32.500 19.619

		 	 Expense recognised in Profit and loss account

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Current service cost 7.199 7.229
Interest cost 4.130 3.393
Expected return on plan assets (2.323) (1.388)
Total actuarial (gain)/loss (1.466) 6.791
Total expenses included in Schedule 7.540 16.025

		 	 Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Defined benefit obligation as at end of the year 66.758 58.998
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year (32.500) (19.618)
Net liability 34.258 39.380

(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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	 	Employee benefits

	 Actual return on plan assets

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009

Expected return on plan assets 2.323 1.388

Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets (0.432) (0.283)

Actual return on plan assets 1.891 1.105

	 Principal actuarial assumptions

Particulars 31/03/2010 
(%)

31/03/2009 
(%)

Discount rate  8.00% 7.10%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 9.25% 9.25%
Salary increment rate 8.00% 8.00%

	 Composition of plan assets

Particulars 31/03/2010 
(%) 

31/03/2009 
(%)

Central government securities 56.00% 56.09%
State government securities 0.00% 11.18%
Approved marketable securities 0.00% 2.96%
Bonds/debentures, etc. 36.00% 22.03%
Loans 0.00% 0.36%
Equity 6.00% 5.64%
Liquid fund/money market instruments 2.00% 1.74%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

	 Notes:

1. Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on actuarial expectation of the average long-term rate of return  
expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations.

2. The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors on long term basis.

18.10  Employee stock options

	 The Compensation Committee of the Holding company established the Employee Stock Option Plan on 23 July 2005. Employees 
covered by the Plan are granted an option to purchase shares of the Holding company subject to the requirements of vesting. 
Total of 8,100,265 (including impact of bonus) stock options were approved in the Annual General Meeting of the Holding 
company held on 23 July 2005, of which the employees have been granted 2,759,139 stock options on 12 October 2005  
(‘Grant I’) , 2,311,500 stock options on 28 December 2006 (‘Grant II’)and and 3,029,626 stock options on 9 July 2009  
(‘Grant III’).

	 The stock options vest in a graded manner equally over three years with each vesting taking effect on the expiry of 12 months 
from the date of grant. These can be exercised within a period of three years from the date of vesting. The stock options 
granted are exercisable at 100% of the fair market value of the underlying equity shares of the Holding company as on the 
date of grant.

(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)
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	 Grant I
Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year (*) 1,380,774 1,616,109

Granted during the year - -
Additional options on account of allotment of bonus shares - -
Less: exercised 1,306,710 215,431
Less: cancelled 20,162 19,904
Options outstanding at the end of the year 53,902 1,380,774
Options exercisable at the end of the year 53,902 1,380,774

	 (*) Grant I exercise period has been extended by one year as approved in Board Meeting held on 9 July, 2009.
	 Grant II

Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,944,709 2,109,334
Granted during the year - -
Additional options on account of allotment of bonus shares - -
Less: exercised 700 53,841
Less: cancelled 83,650 110,784
Options outstanding at the end of the year 1,860,359 1,944,709
Options exercisable at the end of the year 1,204,671 1,577,405

	 Grant III
Particulars 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year – –
Granted during the year 3,029,626 –
Additional options on account of allotment of bonus shares – –
Less: exercised – –
Less: cancelled 180,750 –
Options outstanding at the end of the year 2,848,876 –
Options exercisable at the end of the year – –

18.11  Taxes
	 In consonance with retrospective amendment to Section 10AA of the Income Tax Act, related to the profit derived by SEZ 

undertaking which was ascertained hitherto based on the business of the assessee instead of the business of undertaking, 
the excess provision of current tax of earlier financial years 2007-08 & 2008-09 of Rs. 131.500 is written back during the 
year. Accordingly current tax expense of Rs. 70.218 is net of the said write back.

	 Long term capital loss is adjustable against future capital gains considering the quantum of investible surplus available with 
the company.

18.12	 Exceptional item
	 During the year, the process of divestment of Praj Schneider Inc. the wholly owned subsidiary of the Group in USA was 

completed. Consequently the loss of Rs. 40.184 has been taken to Profit and Loss Account and shown under ‘exceptional 
items’.

18.13	 Prior year comparatives
	 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

(Currency : Indian rupees millions, except share data)
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(Currency:Indian rupees millions,except share data)

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

AS OF 31 MARCH 2010

1. NAME OF THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANY Pacecon 
Engineering 

Projects 
Limited,India

Praj Far 
East Co. Ltd. 

Thailand

BioCnergy 
Europa BV, 

Netherlands

Praj Jaragua 
Bioenergia S.A. 

Brazil

2. FINANCIAL PERIOD OF THE SUBSIDIARY ENDED ON 31/03/2010 31/03/2010 31/03/2010 31/03/2010

3. HOLDING COMPANY'S INTEREST 99.53% of Equity 
Capital

100% of Equity 
Capital

60% of Equity 
Capital

54% of Equity 
Capital

4. CAPITAL 3.098 5.007 29.385 133.307

5. RESERVES 10.694 4.329 22.942 (128.992)

6. TOTAL ASSETS 181.555 18.395 250.917 7.167

7. TOTAL LIABILITIES 181.555 18.395 250.917 7.167

8. INVESTMENTS 0.110 NIL NIL NIL

9. TURNOVER 197.734 36.965 1470.455 –

10. NET AGGREGATE PROFIT /(LOSS)FOR THE CURRENT YEAR 
-(BEFORE TAXES)

(25.856) 1.472 43.755 (32.517)

11.
PROVISION FOR TAXATION (INCLUDING DEFERRED 
TAXES) (9.546) 0.322  – –

12. PROFIT AFTER TAX (16.309) 1.150 43.755 (32.517)

13. PROPOSED DIVIDEND NIL NIL NIL NIL

14. NET AGGREGATE PROFITS /LOSSES FOR THE CURRENT 
FINANCIAL YEAR SINCE BECOMING SUBSIDIARY SO 
FAR AS IT CONCERNS THE MEMBERS OF THE HOLDING 
COMPANY DEALT WITH OR PROVIDED FOR IN ACCOUNTS 
OF THE HOLDING COMPANY 

NIL NIL NIL NIL

15. NET AGGREGATE PROFITS / LOSSES FOR THE CURRENT 
FINANCIAL YEAR SINCE BECOMING SUBSIDIARY SO 
FAR AS IT CONCERNS THE MEMBERS OF THE HOLDING 
COMPNAY NOT DEALT WITH OR PROVIDED FOR IN 
ACCOUNTS OF THE HOLDING COMPANY 

(16.233) 1.150 26.253 (17.559)

16. NET AGGREGATE PROFITS / LOSSES FOR THE PREVIOUS 
FINANCIAL YEAR SINCE BECOMING SUBSIDIARY SO 
FAR AS IT CONCERNS THE MEMBERS OF THE HOLDING 
COMPANY DEALT WITH OR PROVIDED FOR IN ACCOUNTS 
OF THE HOLDING COMPANY 

NIL NIL NIL NIL

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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1. NAME OF THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Pacecon 
Engineering 

Projects 
Limited, India

Praj Far 
East Co. Ltd. 

Thailand

BioCnergy 
Europa BV, 

Netherlands

Praj Jaragua 
Bioenergia S.A. 

Brazil

17 NET AGGREGATE PROFITS / LOSSES FOR THE PREVIOUS 
FINANCIAL YEAR SINCE BECOMING SUBSIDIARY SO 
FAR AS IT CONCERNS THE MEMBERS OF THE HOLDING 
COMPANY NOT DEALT WITH OR PROVIDED FOR IN 
ACCOUNTS OF THE HOLDING COMPANY 

26.647 2.607 (27.590) (40.250)

18. NET AGGREGATE AMOUNTS RECEIVED AS DIVIDEND FOR 
THE PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEARS SINCE BECOMING 
SUBSIDIARY DEALT WITH IN THE ACCOUNTS OF THE 
HOLDING COMPANY IN THE FINANCIAL YEARS

NIL NIL NIL NIL

19. ORIGINAL CURRENCY INR THAI BAHT EURO BRAZILIAN REAL

20. EXCHANGE RATE AS ON 31 MARCH, 2010 IN 
INR-CLOSING RATE

–  1.40  59.84  25.15 

21.
EXCHANGE RATE FROM 1 APRIL 2009 TO 31 MARCH, 2010 
IN INR-AVERAGE RATE

–  1.42  67.47  25.67 

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010

For and on behalf of the Board

PRAMOD CHAUDHARI SHASHANK INAMDAR 
EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN CEO & MD 

DEEPAK MOGAL SIVARAMAKRISHNAN S. IYER 
COMPANY SECRETARY DIRECTOR 

PLACE	 : 	PUNE
DATE	 : 	29 MAY 2010
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty-fourth Annual General Meeting of PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED will be held on Friday,  
23 July 2010 at 10.00 a.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at ‘PRAJ HOUSE’, Bavdhan, Pune 411 021 to transact the 
following business :

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2010 and the Profit and Loss Account for the year 
ended on that date together with the reports of Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Berjis Desai who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

3.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Kishor Chaukar who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for  
re-appointment.

4.	 To appoint the Auditors to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting till the conclusion of the next Annual General 
Meeting and authorize Board to fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 ‘‘RESOLVED THAT Mr. Rajiv Maliwal who was appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. 14 August 2009, pursuant to Section 
260 of the Companies Act, 1956 and who holds office up to this Annual General Meeting and for the appointment of whom 
the Company has received a notice under Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956 from a member proposing his candidature 
for the office of a Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company whose period of office will be liable to 
retirement by rotation.’’

6. 	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 ‘‘RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 198, 269, 309 and 317 read with Schedule XIII and all other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956 or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, approval 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. Shashank N. Inamdar as a Managing Director, 
designated as CEO & MD, of the Company, by extending his present term for a further period of 2 (Two) years with effect from 
1 August 2010 on the modified terms and conditions including remuneration as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed 
to the Notice convening this Meeting, with liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Board’ which term 
shall be deemed to include any Committee of the Board constituted to exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by 
this Resolution) to alter and vary the terms and conditions and/or remuneration, subject to the same not exceeding the limits 
specified under Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956 or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or 
expedient to give effect to this Resolution.’’

By Order of the Board of Directors

		  DEEPAK MOGAL
	 COMPANY SECRETARY
PLACE	 : 	 PUNE
DATE	 : 	 29 MAY 2010
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Notes:

(a)	 A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the Meeting) is entitled to 
appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on a Poll instead of himself and the Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

(b)	 The instrument appointing the Proxy should be lodged with the Company at its Registered Office not less than forty-eight 
hours before the commencement of the Meeting. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to 
attend the Meeting are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend 
and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

(c)	 An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173 (2) of the Companies Act, 1956, relating to the Special Business to be 
transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.

(d)	 The brief resumes of the Directors, who are to be appointed/re-appointed, including nature of their expertise, their 
shareholding in the Company, etc., details are furnished in the report on Corporate Governance, which forms part of the 
Directors’ Report and members are advised to refer to the same.

(e)	 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Monday, 19 July 2010 to Friday, 
23 July 2010 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of the Meeting.

(f)	 (i) 	 Members are requested to convert their physical holding to demat to avoid hassles involved with physical shares, such 
as possibility of loss, mutilation, and to ensure safe and speedy transaction in securities. Members are also requested 
to notify change of address, bank details, ECS mandates, e-mail id, if any, to their Depository Participants (DPs) in 
respect of their electronic share accounts and to the Registrar & Transfer Agent of the Company i.e. M/s Link Intime 
India Pvt. Ltd., Pune, in respect of their physical share folios to avoid procedural delays.

	 (ii) 	 Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same order of 
names are requested to send the share certificates to the Registrar & Transfer Agent M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., 
Pune, for consolidation into a single folio.

	 (iii) 	 Members holding shares in physical form are requested to send certified copy of their Income Tax Permanent 
Account Number (PAN) card, including for all joint holders, to the Registrar & Transfer Agent of the Company.

(g)	 Members attending the meeting are requested to complete the enclosed attendance slip and deliver the same at the entrance 
of the meeting hall.

(h)	 The unclaimed dividends up to the Company’s financial year 1998 have been transferred to General Revenue Account of the 
Central Government.

	 Pursuant to Sections 205A and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956, any money transferred to Unpaid Dividend Account, which 
remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 years from the date of such transfer, shall be transferred by the Company to a 
fund called Investor Education and Protection Fund, set up by the Central Government. Accordingly, the unclaimed dividend 
for the years 2003-2004 onwards will become transferable at the end of seven years respectively, to the said Fund and no 
claims shall lie against the Fund or the Company in respect of individual amounts thereafter. Shareholders are, therefore, 
requested to check and send their claims, if any, for the relevant financial years from 2003-04 onwards before the respective 
amounts become due for transfer to the above Fund.

(i)	 Relevant documents referred to in the Notice are open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office on working 
days between 3.00 p.m. and 5.00 p.m. upto the date of the Meeting.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956.
ITEM NO. 5
Mr. Rajiv Maliwal was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company with effect from 14 August 2009. As 
per the provisions of Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956 (the Act), he holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting. The 
Company has received a notice from a member along with a deposit of Rs. 500/- as per Section 257 of the Act signifying his intention to 
propose the candidature of Mr. Rajiv Maliwal for the office of Director of the Company.
Mr. Rajiv Maliwal is a Co-founder and Managing Director of Sabre Capital, a private equity firm. He is an IIM and BITS Pilani Alumni and has 
had extensive experience in investing and managing large businesses in financial service industry. The Board of Directors recommends his 
appointment as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.
None of the Directors, other than Mr. Rajiv Maliwal himself, is in any way concerned or interested in this resolution.
ITEM NO. 6
Mr. Shashank N. Inamdar was appointed as Managing Director of the Company from 1 August 2007 for an initial period of 
three years, which is now sought to be extended by a further period of two years. Accordingly, the present proposal is to seek the 
members’ approval for the re-appointment of and remuneration payable to Mr. Shashank N. Inamdar as a Managing Director, 
designated as CEO & MD, in terms of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Board of Directors of the 
Company (the ‘Board’) at its meeting held on 29 May  2010 has, subject to the approval of members, extended the present term of  
Mr. Shashank N. Inamdar for a further period of 2 years from the expiry of his present term, on the modified terms and conditions.
Mr. Shashank N. Inamdar upon re-appointment as Managing Director shall continue to hold office of the CEO & MD. Broad particulars of the 
terms of re-appointment and remuneration payable to Mr. Shashank N. Inamdar are as under:
SALARY
Salary not exceeding Rs. 500,000/- per month. The starting salary shall be Rs. 450,000/- per month.
PERQUISITES AND ALLOWANCES
(i) 	 In addition to the salary payable, the CEO & MD shall also be entitled to perquisites and allowances like accommodation (furnished 

or otherwise) or house rent allowance in lieu thereof; house maintenance allowance, together with reimbursement of expenses or 
allowances for utilities such as gas, electricity, water, furnishings and repairs; medical reimbursement; leave travel concession for 
himself and his family; club fees, medical insurance and such other perquisites and allowances in accordance with the rules of the 
Company or as may be agreed to by the Board of Directors and Mr. Shashank N. Inamdar from time to time.

(ii) 	 For the purpose of calculating the above ceiling, the perquisites and allowances shall be evaluated, wherever applicable, as per the 
provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961 or any rules thereunder or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereto. In the absence 
of any such Rules, they shall be evaluated at actual cost. Provision for use of the Company's car for official duties and telephone at 
residence (including payment for local calls and long distance official calls) shall not be included in the computation of perquisites for 
the purpose of calculating the said ceiling.

(iii) 	 Company's contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation or Annuity Fund, to the extent these either singly or together are not 
taxable under the Income Tax Act, Gratuity payable as per the rules of the Company and encashment of leave at the end of his tenure, 
shall not be included in the computation of limits for the remuneration or perquisites aforesaid.

PERFORMANCE BONUS
In addition to the salary, perquisites and allowances as above, Performance Bonus shall be paid to him depending upon the performance 
of the Company and his individual performance. The quantum of performance bonus will be as approved by the Board of Directors within 
the overall limits approved by the members.
COMMISSION
In addition to salary, perquisites & allowance and Performance Bonus as above, Mr. Shashank N. Inamdar shall also be entitled to receive 
commission on net profits. The quantum of commission payable to him for each financial year will be as approved by the Board of Directors 
within the overall limits approved by the members.
MINIMUM REMUNERATION
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of  
Mr. Shashank N. Inamdar, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate the Company will pay remuneration by way of salary 
and perquisites and allowances as specified above as minimum remuneration subject to the overall ceiling as set out in Section II of Part 
II of Schedule XIII and the same as may be amended from time to time.
OTHER BENEFITS
Mr. Shashank N. Inamdar shall be entitled to benefits under any other schemes, provisions and amenities as are granted / likely to be 
granted to the Senior Executives of the Company in accordance with the Company's Practice, Rules & Regulations in force from time to time. 
Apart from the remuneration aforesaid Mr. Shashank N. Inamdar will be entitled to the reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection 
with the business of the Company.
Mr. Shashank N. Inamdar satisfies all the conditions set out in Part-I of Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956 for being eligible for the 
re-appointment. A brief resume of Mr. Shashank N. Inamdar along with information, as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement 
with the Stock Exchanges in India, is provided in the Report on Corporate Governance forming part of the Annual Report. This may be 
treated as an abstract of the terms of re-appointment of Mr. Shashank N. Inamdar under Section 302 of the Companies Act, 1956.
None of the Directors, other than Mr. Shashank N. Inamdar himself, is in any way concerned or interested in this resolution. The Board 
commends the Resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice for your approval.

By Order of the Board of Directors

PLACE	 : PUNE	 DEEPAK MOGAL
DATE	 : 29 MAY 2010	 COMPANY SECRETARY



PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Registered Office : ‘‘PRAJ HOUSE’’, Bavdhan, Pune 411 021

TWENTY FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING – FRIDAY, 23rd JULY, 2010

ADMISSION SLIP
(To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall)

Folio No./Client Id 

I certify that I am a Member/Proxy for the Member of the Company and hold 

Shares. I hereby record my presence at the TWENTY FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING being held at ‘‘PRAJ HOUSE’’, Bavdhan, 
Pune 411 021 on 23rd July, 2010 at 10.00 a.m.

	
Name of Member/Proxy (in block letters) 	 Member’s/Proxy’s Signature

Notes:

1.	 A member/proxy desiring to attend the Meeting must complete this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance.

2.	 A member/proxy desiring to attend the meeting should bring his/her copy of the Annual Report for reference at the meeting.

PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Registered Office : ‘‘PRAJ HOUSE’’, Bavdhan, Pune 411 021

PROXY FORM
TWENTY FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING – FRIDAY, 23rd JULY, 2010

Folio No. / Client Id 

I/We  of  in the

state of  being a member/members of Praj Industries Limited, hereby

appoint  of  or failing 

him/her  of  as my/our  proxy  

to  attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf, at the TWENTY FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be 

held on 23rd July, 2010 at ‘‘PRAJ HOUSE’’, Bavdhan, Pune 411 021 at 10.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

Place: 	
Signature 

Date: 

Note: This proxy form duly signed across must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the 
time of the meeting.

Tear Here

Affix
Re. 1

Revenue
Stamp
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